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Financial Highlights
B E

Revenue of the Group increased by 11.8% or RMB268.6 million to
RMB2,540.1 million for the Reporting Period (2022: RMB2,271.5
million), among which revenue from sales of human albumin solution
increased by approximately RMB249.8 million, mainly benefited from
the increase in sales volume.

Gross profit of the Group increased by RMB17.4 million to RMB323.3
million for the Reporting Period (2022: RMB305.9 million), while gross
profit margin decreased from 13.5% in 2022 to 12.7% for the Reporting
Period. The increase in gross profit was mainly due to the increase in
the sales of human albumin and the revenue from the medical beauty
services.

Net profit of the Group decreased by 39.0% to RMB42.4 million for
the Reporting Period (2022: RMB69.5 million), primarily due to the
increased administration expense as the Group increased the business
operation in research and manufacturing of aesthetic medicine
segment and medical beauty segment.

During the Reporting Period, net profit attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to RMB42.4 million (2022: net profit of
RMB69.5 million), representing a decrease in net profit of RMB27.1
million.

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to RMB0.02 for the
Reporting Period (2022: basic and diluted earnings per Share of
RMBO0.03).

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 of HK$0.39 cents (2022: final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.98 cents)
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HK$8,000,000 (2022:
HK$20,000,000). The dividend has been proposed by the Directors
of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend has been calculated
by reference to the 2,032,890,585 issued shares outstanding as at
the date of this report.
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Financial Highlights B1#HH =

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 2023%F

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTT ARETET ARETE AREBETT AR¥TR

Operating results REEE
Revenue s 1,176,409 2,049,803 2,024,055 2,271,505 2,540,063
Gross profit ESAl 219,847 273,826 364,950 305,868 323,280
Profit/(loss) before tax B ATEA, (EE) 42,955 135,955 167,387 99,292 99,881
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHM, (FIE) 23,550 118,137 135,083 69,462 42,352
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARAREB AEMN 23,552 118,137 135,083 69,462 42,352
owners of the Company wH(E518)
Profitability BF|
Gross margin ERER 18.7% 13.4% 18.0% 13.5% 12.7%
Net profit/(loss) margin 4, (18 )= 2% 5.8% 6.7% 3.1% 1.7%
Revenue Profit/(loss) Attributable to
Wz Owners of the Company
ARQREE AEERER,(BE)
RMB’000
aaa RMB’000
ARETT 2,540,063 ARETT
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 2023%F

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT AR¥TR

Financial position BRI

Total assets BEE 832,344 1,252,053 1,232,766 1,424,333 1,890,678

Total equity R 46,292 164,429 374,886 603,812 628,052

Total liabilities FEN=Fi 786,052 1,087,624 857,880 820,521 1,262,626

Equity attributable to owners ~ ZRAFHEAB A 47,200 165,337 374,886 603,812 628,052
of the Company FE(h iR

Cash and cash equivalents* Re kBEEEY* 224,756 143,765 381,067 436,996 657,948

2023 £ BREBERERER AR 5



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
Shareholders for their concern and support to the Company, and hereby
present the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

The past year has been a year of great challenges and opportunities for
the Group and the entire pharmaceutical industry. In the post-pandemic
era, we have not only steadily met the challenges in the development of
China’s pharmaceutical and blood product sectors, but also successfully
seized opportunities, achieving gratifying results.

In 2023, we have noticed that the demand for products like intravenous
immunoglobulin and human albumin is undergoing long-term, trend-
based changes. These changes stemmed not only from the expansion
of clinical application scenarios but also from the growth of the industry
itself. Due to the strict control over the number of plasma collection
stations and blood product production licenses in our country, there
has always been a supply shortage of blood products. Especially during
the pandemic, the medical industry’s awareness of these products has
significantly increased. It is expected that in the next 2-3 years, blood
products will become one of the most prosperous sub-sectors in the
pharmaceutical industry.

On the path of future development, the Group will continue to focus on
innovation and development in the field of blood products. Facing the
advent of an aging society and the decline in the number of newborns,
we are fully aware that there will be new changes in healthcare needs.
We will closely monitor the impact brought about by these demographic
changes, especially regarding the demand for blood products and medical
services.

Considering that there is still much room for improvement in China’s per
capita consumption of blood products compared to international levels,
we are optimistic about the growth potential of the domestic market.
We will be committed to enhancing the clinical penetration of blood
products to meet the ever-increasing market demand. Additionally, we
will also continue to optimize our supply chain management and improve
distribution efficiency, ensuring the efficient and safe supply of high-
quality products under strict industry regulations.

The Group is dedicated to enhancing the quality of our products and the
level of our services to meet the needs of the market and our customers.
We firmly believe that through meticulous product management and
optimized services, the Company will be able to effectively respond to
new challenges in the industry, bringing stable and continuous growth
for our Shareholders and making significant contributions in the field of
healthcare and medicine.
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Chairman’s Statement FE#R%E

Steady Growth of Blood Products Sales and
Marketing Network Covering Key Hospitals Across
the Country

During the Reporting Period, the annual batch release volume of human
albumin solution in China reached 78.1 million bottles, representing an
increase of 15.4% compared to the previous year. In terms of market
share, imported albumin and domestically produced albumin accounted
for 66.3% and 33.7% respectively, and we have observed a continuous
upward trend in the market share of imported albumin.

As the domestic and international markets continue to evolve, we are
seeing more single plasma collection stations obtaining approval, as well as
foreign blood product enterprises increasing their supply to the Chinese
region. Given these developments, we anticipate a continued increase
in the supply of human albumin over the next two years. Consequently,
market competition is expected to become more intense. In response to
this challenge, we will continue to optimize our product strategies and
market layout, striving to maintain a leading position in the competitive
landscape.

During the Reporting Period, the sales of the Group’s human albumin
solution was RMB2,507.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB249.8 million or approximately 11.1% compared to
2022.

Over the past year, the Company has implemented significant adjustments
to our marketing strategy, optimizing the market distribution and sales
channels of our products. We not only consolidated our business layout
in large hospitals in major cities across the country but also successfully
expanded our operations to more hospitals in prefecture-level cities and
second-tier and third-tier cities through close collaboration with numerous
partners. During this period, our products saw a notable increase in
sales volume in various terminal hospitals. Looking ahead to 2024, our
Company will continue to focus on the hospital market as the core of
our marketing strategy, while also strengthening cooperation with retail
pharmacies, striving to achieve broader market coverage and increase our
share in the sales channels.
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Chairman'’s Statement X E#RE

Continuous Research and Development of Medical
Aesthetic Products

The Group's research and development is carried out by its wholly-
owned subsidiary — Chengdu Hengmeisheng Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
("Chengdu Hengmeisheng”), which has developed its capacity in
research and development and production and completed its staff
organisation, hardware (plant, facilities, equipment) construction and
production quality system establishment in 2023. The Girl Needle project
has completed preclinical studies and entered the clinical trial stage. The
clinical trial is scheduled to be completed in the second half of 2025.
The another researched project, Secret Needle, has completed the small-
scale laboratory tests and is in the stage of preclinical animal tests with
continuous progress. In 2023, the Group embarked on its self-developed
and first-in-class products in the field of medical aesthetics in China while
advancing its business development in Southeast Asia.

Continuously Improving Corporate Governance

In the recovery year following the COVID-19 pandemic, our Group
has been dedicated to continuously refining our sales strategies and
strengthening the exploration and expansion into new terminal hospital
markets. These measures have effectively enhanced our adaptability to
the dynamics of the pharmaceutical industry and our sensitivity to market
changes. Concurrently, the Group has been actively building an internal
management system, focusing on talent development and team building,
aiming to create a more efficient sales team. The Company will oversee
the internal control and risk management systems on an on-going basis
and ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries has
been conducted at least annually. In addition, the Company will pay close
attention to corporate social responsibility, and practice corporate social
responsibility in the Group’s management.

Finally, on behalf of the Company’s board of Directors, | would like to
express my deep gratitude to our steadfast Shareholders, customers and
partners who have always supported our Group. Your trust and support
are the driving forces behind our development. At the same time, |
would also like to thank every member of our team for their hard work
and contributions. We will keep pace with the post-pandemic market
trends, continuously strengthen our competitive advantages, and commit
ourselves to creating more value for Shareholders, customers and all
stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 22 April 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENW& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 75 [E B8
Revenue g

The Group recorded revenue of RMB2,540.1 million for the Reporting ~ AEBERREEANFERZAREE2 5401 BET * B
Period, representing an increase of RMB268.6 million, or 11.8% as 2022 ARK2, 271 5SHEETIEMA RKE268.6E &
compared to RMB2,271.5 million in 2022, which could be further T #1811.8% * A[#E—SHHWT :

analysed as follows:

2023 2022

2023F 20224
RMB’000 % of revenue RMB'000 % of revenue
ARBT R ez {h b ARET T Wzfhtt
Human albumin solution AMBEBHFEFR 1) 2,507,058 98.7 2,257,253 99.4%
Antibiotics nEZ 7,079 0.3 2,060 0.1%
Medical beauty service BERE 2) 25,926 1.0 12,192 0.5%
Total = 2,540,063 100.0 2,271,505 100.0

1) During the Reporting Period, revenue of human albumin solution stood at 1)  H&EHIR - AMBEATHRKSEBARE2507.18

RMB2,507.1 million, representing an increase of approximately 11.1% or BT 20225 EFAL11.1%KARE2498E E
RMB249.8 million as compared with 2022. Such increase in revenue mainly TC o WaEMEZERRAMBERHESNHEESR
benefited from the increase in the supply volume and the sales volume of FHRTER

human albumin.
2)  During the Reporting Period, revenue generated from medical beauty services  2) $R&EHIAN  BERBELNOWEAARE 2597 8
7T

amounted to RMB25.9 million, representing an increase of approximately C FAEE2022F EFA#I112.3% KA RE13.7TEETT ©
112.3% or RMB13.7 million as compared with 2022.
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Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of RMB2,216.8 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB251.2 million, or 12.8% as
compared with RMB1,965.6 million in 2022, which was in line with the
increase in sales revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB323.3 million, representing an increase of RMB17.4 million as
compared with RMB305.9 million in 2022, in which the gross profit of the
human albumin solution increased by RMB9.8 million and the gross profit
of the medical beauty service increased by RMB7.6 million. The gross
profit margin decreased from 13.5% in 2022 to 12.7% for the Reporting
Period. The decrease was primarily caused by its increased purchase
cost of human albumin which was as a result of the depreciation of the
exchange rate of RMB against the USD during the Reporting Period.

Other income and gains

During the Reporting Period, other income and gains of the Group
amounted to RMB14.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB10.6
million as compared with the 2022, which was mainly caused by the
decrease in foreign exchange gains of RMB16.0 million which was
partially offset by the increase of bank interest income of RMB4.7 million
and government grants of RMB1.3 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB93.7 million, representing a decrease of
RMB23.3 million as compared with the corresponding period of 2022.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in marketing and promotion
expenses.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB108.9 million, representing an increase of RMB27.5 million as
compared with the corresponding period of 2022. With the business
development in the research and manufacturing of aesthetic medicine
segment and the medical beauty segment, the increase of administrative
expenses was mainly due to the increase in the staff cost which was in line
with the increase of the employees, office rental expenses, tax expenses,
amortization expenses, travel expenses and other miscellaneous expenses.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses of
RMB13.8 million, representing an increase of RMB7.3 million as compared
with the 2022, which was mainly due to the increase in foreign exchange
loss.
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Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB14.4 million, representing a decrease of RMB3.9 million as compared
with the 2022, which was mainly due to the decrease of the interest of
bank loans.

Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expense increased by
RMB27.7 million or 93.0% to RMB57.5 million as compared with the
2022. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the non-taxable
expenses which in turn resulted the increase of taxable profit.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a net profit of RMB42.4
million, representing a decrease of RMB27.1 million as compared with
RMB69.5 million in 2022.

Inventories

The inventory balance amounted to RMB108.0 million as of 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: RMB88.1 million), representing an increase
of RMB19.9 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2022.
Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the inventory balance of
human albumin solution.

In line with the increase of the inventories, the Group’s average inventory
turnover days slightly increased by 2 days from 14 days in 2022 to 16 days
for the Reporting Period.

Trade and bills receivables

The balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB536.0 million as of 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB350.2 million). The increase of
RMB185.8 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2022 was
because with the increase of sales, the Group granted the credit term to
some major customers.

The balance of bills receivables as of 31 December 2023 was RMB4.5
million (31 December 2022: RMB1.1 million), representing an increase
of RMB3.4 million as compared to the year-end balance of 2022. Such
increase was primarily resulted from the increase in sales of human
albumin solution.
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Prepayments, deposits, other receivables and other assets
As of 31 December 2023, the prepayments, deposits, other receivables
and other asset amounted to RMB126.8 million (31 December 2022:
RMB141.0 million), representing a decrease of RMB14.2 million as
compared with the year-end balance of 2022. Such a decrease was
mainly due to the decrease of the prepayment of deposits for issuance
of the letter of credit of RMB26.5 million and the decrease of the other
receivables for others of RMB2.7 million. The decrease was partially offset
by the increase of the prepayment of the value-added tax recoverable
amount of RMB16.8 million.

Trade and bills payables

As of 31 December 2023, trade and bills payables amounted to RMB866.6
million (31 December 2022: RMB408.0 million), representing an increase
of RMB458.6 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2022,
which was mainly due to the increase in payables for the purchase of
human albumin solution.

Other payables and accruals

As of 31 December 2023, other payables and accruals amounted to
RMB53.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB117.9 million), representing a
decrease of RMB64.0 million as compared with the year-end balance of
2022. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of payables in relation
to (i) the import agent services of RMB74.6 million; (ii) the deposits
received from distributors of RMB3.1 million and (iii) the payables of the
consulting and professional fee of RMB1.4 million. The decrease was
partially offset by the increase of (i) the other payables of RMB8.1 million;
(i) the other tax payables of RMB4.1 million; and (iii) the payroll and
welfare payable of RMB3.0 million.
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Borrowings (EES
As of 31 December 2023, the Group has borrowings of RMB241.7 million ~ #%F 2023412 8310 * "EBHERA AR
in total, with details set out below: 281 7EBBTT BT ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETIT
Current; mE
Bank loans IRITER 240,857 180,806
Non-current; B
Bank loans RITER 886 922
Total &5t 241,743 181,728
Gearing ratio BEt=

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was ~ RIREHR - REBMAGBHERFENT -
calculated as follows:

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTFT

Bank borrowings RITER 241,743 181,728
Trade and bills payables B S RN RERENRR 866,585 407,988
Other payables and accruals HAh FE FE R EETEUR 53,862 117,927
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,658 10,684
Tax payables FETERIA 26,444 5,437
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss R A T EiT ABHEHN SR A & 22,078 19,078
Less: Bank balances and cash W RITEBRIERS (437,922) (329,144)
Less: Pledged deposits B BT (220,026) (107,852)
Net debt® BEFHEE 562,422 305,846
Equity s 628,052 603,812
Equity and net debt® Em R B EFEY 1,190,474 909,658
Gearing ratio@® B &L Ren 47.2% 33.6%
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Liquidity and capital resources
The following table sets out a condensed summary of the Group's

REBEERERRIR
TRAAEENHERANGERSRER G AR

consolidated statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period: &= .
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE AR¥T T AREETTT
Net cash flows from operating activities LR EBMBRESREFRE 1) 353,700 75,081
Net cash flows used in investing activities REETBMARSREFRE 2) (63,626) (119,270)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities EV& EE) (), PSR4
MEFE 3) (189,729) 35,043
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BEMIRESEWIEM, CRd)
equivalents HER 100,345 (9,146)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEERE B L  FEE 8,433 12,238
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYReRIREEED
of the year 4) 329,144 326,052
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIBENIEEEED 4) 437,922 329,144
Notes: Maz -
1) Net cash from operating activities 1) RESEEFSIE SIS

2)

3)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow generated from
operating activities amounted to approximately RMB353.7 million (for the
year 2022: net cash inflow of RMB75.1 million), which was mainly due to the
cash inflow from operation activities amounted to RMB140.3 million and the
increase of in trade and bills payables of RMB444.2 million and the decrease
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets of RMB40.6 million, which
were partially offset by the increase in trade and bills receivables of RMB195.9
million, decrease in contract liabilities of RMB35.0 million and increase in
inventories of RMB19.9 million.

Net cash used in investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in investing activities
amounted to approximately RMB63.6 million (for the year 2022: net cash
outflow of RMB119.3 million), which mainly included the investments in
purchase of items of property, plant and equipment of RMB29.6 million,
payment of right-to-use land of RMB19.9 million and additions to others
intangible assets of RMB15.1 million.

Net cash from financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group's net cash outflow from financing
activities amounted to approximately RMB189.7 million (for the year 2022:
net cash inflow of RMB35.0 million). The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in the proceeds of issue of new shares of RMB159.5 million;
the decrease in the other payables and accruals of RMB147.3 million; the
decrease in the prepayments, other receivables and other assets of RMB61.9
million and the increase in the pledged deposit of RMB59.4 million, which
was partially offset by the increase in the net proceeds from bank borrowings
of RMB218.8 million.

3)

RIEHR - AEBELEESMBESRAFENR
ARM3IS3.7EEIT(202F  HERAFBARK
751EET) TEHREEEDEHRESRAARE
140388 BHRMNRERENZEREMARE
4442 B ETTARTEN I - W RIEREMEE
WMOAREEL0.6EETT - S0 E 5 EIKGRIE K EKR
ZEEMARKIGIEET aNAEERDARE
5.0 BT RFEEMARE19.98 BT -

REEHMARSFER

RIEHR - AEERETHMARESFENAAR
¥63.6AEIL(2022F - HEamtFEARK11938
Br) HPXZeiEBEYE  BERREBEERE
ARKE296EET XN T HEREARKI995E
TTRAEHEMEFEEARKISIBETT

BAERB PSR TR

RBEHAR - AEEREEHRSREFENBAR
¥189.7E B L(20224F - MEMAFHEARK3S.08
BIT) ° TR EBHRRBEITIRATERER D AR
1595B BTt « HiENFERETRERD AR
147 3B 87T BAEIE - HtEKRIER M EER
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4)  The following table sets out the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the Reporting Period:

Denominated in RMB UARKEHE
Denominated in US$* PASETTEHE
Denominated in HK$* LA TTEHE
Denominated in S$* AN TLaHE

4)  TRENAEENRERRNOES MREFEY

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFT
541,812 284,759
110,102 69,328
2,355 72,120
3,679 10,789
657,948 436,996

* US$ stands for the United States dollar. HK$ stands for the Hong Kong
dollar. S$ stands for the Singapore dollar.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies. Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents are held in major financial institutions located in Mainland
China. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and the senior management of the Company reviews and
assesses the creditworthiness of the Group's existing customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors its exposure
to a shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group is mainly denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain items below:

o Certain bank balances are denominated in US$, HK$, S$; and

o Purchase of products from overseas suppliers and relevant trade and
bills payables are denominated in US$.

The Group manages the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies by
foreign currency forward and option contracts, and does not enter into
any hedging transactions.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets
As at the date of this report, the Group does not have any future plans for
material capital assets.
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Capital expenditure
The following table sets out the Group’s capital expenditure for the
periods indicated:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

BEME  BELRE

B
TR EERATHAROEARR -

2023
pLipkE:3

2022
20224
RMB’000

ARETT
52,691

RMB’000
ARET T

29,550

29,550 52,691

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of the Group's pledged
assets were set out as follows:

For obtaining bank and other borrowings

HAREE
R2023F12A310  XEEBEEAERKABE -

EEIRE
M2023F12A318 - AEBERFEENREESR
HET

31 December
2022

20224
12A31H
RMB’000
ARETTT

31 December
2023
20234

12A31A
RMB’000
ARBT R

RRERRT REMER

- Buildings —&F 68,489 70,999

— Inventories —FE - 38,982
For issuance of letters of credit, billings and other ARRMERZE - RLEZREM

— Bank balances —IRITHEER 220,026 107,852

Dividend

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2023 of HK$0.39 cents (2022: final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.98 cents) per ordinary share,
in an aggregate amount of HK$8,000,000 (2022: HK$20,000,000).
The dividend has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and
is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming general
meeting. The final dividend has been calculated by reference to the
2,032,890,585 issued shares outstanding as at the date of this report.

BRE
EESREREE2023F12A31MBIEFES KK
HIRY B &A% E @ AR 0.3978 (L (2022 4F : & E=2022
F12ANBLEFERRBIRE098EB) - BEA
8,000,000 7T (20224 : 20,000,000587T) ° %2
BAARESREZ  ALRRREEREAS LIE
FAERE - REIR B2 E RN ARE B HRITEING
2,032,890,5858 B 21 TR A FTE -

2023 54 EAABEERARAT 17



Business Review

The Group focuses on three business segments including biologics,
medical aesthetic products and biopharmaceutical cold chain and supply
chain services. Biologics business provides comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management (“MPCM") services that mainly
cover imported blood products and other imported anti-infective drugs;
medical aesthetic products business is committed to establishing the
independent research and development, production and sales of the
leading aesthetical medicine with proprietary intellectual properties in
China; biopharmaceutical cold chain and supply chain services focus
on the cold chain facilities construction and industry chain services of
biopharmaceutical products, as well as establishing the supply chain
service platform of relevant products.

1. Core Products

Human Albumin Solution

Blood products originated in the early 1940s and, after decades of
rapid development, the range of products has expanded from the
initial human albumin to include over 20 varieties across three major
series: human albumin, immunoglobulins, and coagulation factors.
With the approval of new indications and the increase in diagnosis
and treatment rates, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association
(PPTA) anticipates that the global demand for blood products will
continue to grow at a high rate in the future. Human albumin, as the
largest sales category in the Chinese blood product market and the
only blood product currently allowed to be imported, has maintained
rapid growth in the annual batch release volume of both imported
and domestic varieties. In 2023, the annual batch release volume
was 78.1 million bottles (2022: 67.7 million bottles), with imported
and domestically produced human albumin accounting for 66.3%
and 33.7% of the market share, respectively. The human albumin
solution operated by our Group is produced by Octapharma, one
of the global giants in blood products. It is used to treat conditions
such as shock due to hypovolemia, elimination of edema and toxic
substances, and neonatal hyperbilirubinemia, and is a Category B
product in the National Reimbursement Drug List. Based on the
batch release volume of the human albumin solution in China in
2023, Octapharma’s human albumin solution holds approximately
12.0% of the market share.
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Marketing Network Development

The Group is committed to continuously optimizing and expanding
our marketing network, which has become a key component of our
development strategy. The Group has built a strong and streamlined
internal sales teams and meanwhile the Group also closely
cooperates with numerous professional third party promotional
service providers. In response to the rapid changes in the market,
the Group focuses on building a marketing team that can quickly
respond to market changes and efficiently execute strategies,
adhering to the core principles of being “agile and dynamic” and
“professional and efficient”. The Group has thoroughly optimized
our team structure, prioritizing the discovery and cultivation of talent
to ensure that our team members can continuously progress and
adapt to future market demands. Additionally, the Company has
further improved our team’s performance management system,
allocating sales resources scientifically and rationally to ensure that
each product line receives adequate attention and investment,
thereby enhancing the overall operational efficiency of the team.

The Group has recently conducted meticulous optimization of our
existing sales partner network. By deepening cooperation with
regional distributors and coordinating with our internal sales team,
the Group is accelerating the expansion of our sales channels into
a broader end market. For example, the marketing strategy of the
Group has shifted from a regional distribution to a specific layout
targeting customer in each area and its corresponding promotional
service providers, ensuring that our sales network directly reaches
the market endpoints. Furthermore, the Group’s market coverage
has expanded from major top-tier customers to a wider range,
including provincial, municipal, and county-level customers, thereby
strengthening our market penetration. The ultimate goal of the
Group is to establish a precise and effective promotional service
system in each cooperative customer, maximizing the impact of our
market promotion efforts.

Additionally, the Group are further strengthening the proactive
role of our internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
This includes regularly providing training on product knowledge to
third party promotional service providers and actively participating
in organizing or attending medical and pharmaceutical meetings,
symposiums, and product seminars to directly drive the academic
promotion of our products. This effort aims to expand the Group’s
network of opinion leaders in the main therapeutic areas of our
products, ensuring that doctors receive accurate and timely product
information. Beyond product promotion, the Group is also actively
engaging with third party promotional service providers nationwide
to discuss and interpret the significant impact of national policies,
thereby enhancing the value and appeal of the Group’s training
programs.
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Cold Chain Storage Facility

In view of the Group’s future business expansion needs and the
high demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage and
transportation of blood products and biologics, the Group has
invested in building cold chain storage facilities in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province. The current first phase of the cold
chain warehouse, covering an area of 15,000 square meters, has
been completed, fully satisfying the Group’s storage needs and
effectively ensuring the quality and safety of blood products in the
Group's product portfolio. The construction of the second phase
of cold chain project will be initiated in 2024. Once completed, the
Group will be able to provide high-quality pharmaceutical cold chain
storage services to other third parties, which will become a new
business division for the Group.

Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the
Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese
Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco 1", a realgar-based chemical
medicine. Due to the special manufacturing process, it is difficult
for domestic production equipment to meet relevant technical
requirements, and no substantial progress has been made in the
research. Therefore, the Group has decided to suspend the research
on it.

In September 2021, the Group cooperated with Beijing Nuokangda
to develop polycaprolactone fillers for injection, namely Girl Needle.
As of the date of this report, all relevant plant, production equipment
and facilities have been completed and put into use after passing
the inspection of Sichuan Institute for Drug Control (Sichuan Medical
Device Testing Center). The material of Girl Needle Type S has
completed the master file registration with the Center for Medical
Device Evaluation of National Medical Products Administration in
October 2023. In additional, Girl Needle Type S has completed the
pilot test, validation and production of samples for clinical use in
June 2023. It has passed the registration test of Sichuan Institute for
Drug Control (Sichuan Medical Device Testing Center). The clinical
protocol has been determined and preparations for clinical trials are
underway. In November 2022, the Group cooperated with Beijing
Nuokangda on the research and development of the secret needle
and the secret needle polycaprolactone filling material. The secret
needle and its polycaprolactone fillers project have completed the
small-scale laboratory tests and are in the stage of preclinical animal
tests. The project is advancing.
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

On the one hand, with the gradual fading of the COVID-19 pandemic
and significant adjustments in prevention and control policies in 2023,
the Group ushers in a resurgence in the industry and new development
opportunities. Facing the new landscape and challenges of the post-
pandemic era, we firmly believe that the pharmaceutical and healthcare
industry will continue to demonstrate strong growth momentum and
sustained market demand, driven by population aging, increased health
awareness, changes in the spectrum of diseases, and the application of
new technologies.

At this turning point, the strategic layout of the Group in the field of
blood products and key medical resources has proven its importance. With
the steady growth in national demand for medical resources, key products
of the Group, especially human albumin, are expected to maintain strong
market demand.

On the other hand, the Gril Needle project as the medical aesthetic
product researched by Group is undergoing clinical trials. It is expected
to complete in the second half of 2025. Meanwhile, the Secret Needle
project continues to advance with preclinical animal tests and evaluation
of existing processes. The Chengdu Hengmeisheng Medical Polymer
Materials Research and Development Center jointly established with
Sichuan University has played a core role in technology and the self-
developed new materials and corresponding Class Ill medical devices
are entering the animal tests evaluation stage this year. Adhering to the
concept of “safety, effectiveness and reliability”, the Group'’s research and
development will accelerate the pace of research and development and
strive to continuously provide users with quality new products.

In response to this new market environment, the Group will continue
to adhere to core values of innovation and development, constantly
exploring and expanding new business areas while strengthening
internal management and enhancing risk control capabilities to ensure
the continuous and healthy development of the enterprise. We are
committed to creating value for shareholders, providing a good career
development platform for employees, and actively fulfilling corporate
social responsibilities.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 278 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were RMB54.8
million (2022: RMB30.7 million).

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by taking into
account factors such as remuneration in respect of the local market, the
overall remuneration standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and employee performance. The Group conducts
performance appraisals once every year for its employees, the results of
which are applied in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments.
The Group’s employees are considered for annual bonuses according
to certain performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance
contributions are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance
with the relevant PRC regulations.

The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company adopted a share option scheme to recognize
the contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Company which
may have material and adverse impact on the Group’s performance or
operation are summarized below. There may be other principal risks and
uncertainties in addition to those set out below which are not known to
the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group’s purchase of products from
the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items of
bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings and bonds are
denominated in US$ and HK$.
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o Decrease in profit margin due to increase in cost, decrease in selling
price and intensified competition.

o Prolonged delays or significant disruptions in the supply of products.

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group'’s
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists
the Board in evaluating material risk exposure to the Group’s business,
participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and ensures such measures are properly implemented
in daily operational management.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDER

Human resources are one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
then generates revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies
through distributors or deliverers. Our suppliers or their sales agents have
granted us the exclusive operating rights to market, promote and manage
sales channels for their products in China. We maintain a stable and
long-term relationship with our suppliers by providing them access to the
growing Chinese market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors or deliverers,
who on-sell the products to hospitals and pharmacies directly. The
Group maintains stable and long-term relationship with its distributors or
deliverers by providing them guidance, training and support to carry out
more marketing and promotion activities in targeted fields.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group’s operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

e Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not incur any material cost for
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group have complied with
all related laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have significant impact on
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT FINANCING EVENT AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

2022 Placing of new Shares under general mandate

In order to capture the market opportunities of medical aesthetic
products and to develop its own center to develop, produce and sell
medical aesthetic products gradually, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “2022 Placing”) with Silverbricks Securities
Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”) on 7 December 2021, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue an aggregate
of 160,000,000 Shares (the “Placing Shares”), and the Placing Agent
agreed to procure not less than six independent individuals, institutional
or other professional investors (the “Placees”) to subscribe for, on a best
effort basis, an aggregate of 160,000,000 Placing Shares at the placing
price of HK$1.29 per Placing Share, with an aggregate nominal value of
HK$16,000. The Placing Price of HK$1.29 per Placing Share represents a
discount of approximately 19.38% to the closing price of HK$1.60 per
Share as quoted on the HKSE on 7 December 2021, being the date of the
Placing Agreement.
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The net proceeds from the 2022 Placing, after deduction of the
commission for the placing and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$194.9 million, at a net price (which is calculated by
dividing the net proceeds by the number of Placing Shares) of HK$1.22.
The Company intends that as to:

(@) approximately 40% of the net proceeds of the 2022 Placing
(approximately HK$78.0 million) will be used for relevant costs
and expenses incurred for the development of polycaprolactone
microsphere facial filler and its materials for injection, including but
not limited to development of experimental workshop, research and
development equipments and factories construction investment; and

approximately 60% of the net proceeds of the 2022 Placing
(approximately HK$116.9 million) will be used for the strategic
acquisition/development of new projects/products in the field of
medical aesthetic, including but not limited to acquisition of medical
aesthetic organisations or investing in medical aesthetic projects and
development of new medical aesthetic products.

All the conditions precedent set out in the Placing Agreement (together
with its supplemental agreement entered into between the Company
and the Placing Agent on 30 December 2021) have been fulfilled and
the completion of the Placing Agreement took place on 3 January 2022.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7
December 2021, 30 December 2021 and 3 January 2022.
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In 2022, approximately HK$133.1 million of the net proceeds from the 720224 - 2022 F Al & EIEATEFIBFEAAF 491331
2022 Placing had been used in accordance with the intended use and BEBTCRERTHAEEA - & ZE2022F12 831
the unutilised net proceeds as of 31 December 2022 was approximately B R HAAIFFEHRIEEEN A61.8B BB T « NI
HK$61.8 million. During the Reporting Period, approximately HK$31.0 45BN - 2022 Al E EIEFAERIBEET431.08 8
million of net proceeds from the 2022 Placing had been used and the BTEEA @ AMEBEOT :

details are as follows:

Expected
Net proceeds timeline for

Unutilised net utilised  Unutilised net ~ full utilization

Approximate  Net proceeds proceeds as of during the  proceeds as of of the
% of total fromthe 31 December Reporting 31 December remaining
net proceeds 2022 Placing 2022 Period 2023 net proceeds

BZNnE 8220235 b¥ e
fHERE WANE 12838  REEHA 12A318 HTHE
aFEN £ I REN R BRANAS HARB AN REFEN
BAEAL  HENERE  FSNEEE FERE  FENERE  RARER
(%) HKS(million) HKS(million) HKS(million) HKS'(million)
T (B8)#r  (RE)AT ’ T

Development of polycaprolactone microsphere 5% E51 R 2 C BRI
facial filer and its materials for injection, ASEFHRENR
including but not limited to development DEEARARE
of experimental workshop, research and ERER  HERER
development equipments and factories THREREE
construction investment 40 78.0 244 244 = -

Strategic acquisition/development of new REMIE /RRER
projects/products in the field of medical ERBEMAER/ER

aesthetic, including but not limited DEETRNERE

to acquisition of medical aesthetic FREEGREEEER

organisations or investing in medical BEREEHER

aesthetic projects and development of E3N: 12 months

new medical aesthetic products 60 116.9 374 6.6 308 12088
Total et 100 194.9 618 31.0 308
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Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z##) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 58, founder of
the Group, has been the Chairman and executive Director of the Group
since April 2011. He served as the Co-chief Executive Officer of the
Company from November 2020 to March 2023, with Mr. Jin Min jointly
in charge of overall strategic planning and operation management. Mr.
Huang has served as the director of Risun, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and is the director of XKR Prosperous Holding PTE.
Ltd., Starwell Group Holding Limited, Bright Ritzy Limited, Hong Kong
Prosperous Group Holding Limited, Glorious Empire Limited and Sheenos
Limited. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang was the director and
chairman of Vast Surplus Corporation Limited (“Vast Surplus”) since
November 2004 up until now, mainly responsible for strategic planning
and operation of Vast Surplus. After Vast Surplus transferred its exclusive
distribution rights to service Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina to Hong Kong
Prosperous Group Holding Limited in March 2015, it has no other business
operations. Since then, Mr. Huang has been devoting a majority of his
time to the Group's business. In addition, Mr. Huang was also a founder,
chief executive officer and director of Chengdu Ruixin Biopharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February 2004 to April 2011. The
principal business of Ruixin was consultation in pharmaceutical products,
providing marketing and promotion services as well as assisting in
obtaining regulatory approvals and registrations for pharmaceutical
products. However, the pharmaceutical products served by Ruixin were
mainly traditional Chinese medicine extracts, which are different from
those of the pharmaceutical products served by the Group. Ruixin was not
engaged in any business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business. Furthermore, Ruixin was
jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui
(an independent third party who is not considered as a connected person
or associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was never a member of the Group
which was readily disposable for corporate reorganisation solely based
on Mr. Huang's decision. As the management of Ruixin began to focus
on the business development of the Group since Mr. Huang incorporated
Sichuan Pharmaceuticals in 2011, Ruixin did not have any business or
operations, which subsequently led to the passing of the shareholders’
resolutions on 22 September 2015 to voluntarily dissolve Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (7T
T ZE s ER FT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as a pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (b R BB R EZINEFBERAR Q)
("Beijing Guangtong”), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation of
its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40% and
10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao, respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license of
Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of Beijing
Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s business.
To be best of Mr. Huang’s knowledge, Beijing Guangtong had ceased
attending annul inspection (£ #%) as it had no business operation, resulting
in its business license being revoked subsequently on 26 November 2004.
Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act on his part leading to
the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or potential claim that
has been or will be made against him as a result of the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (E/8238KE8) in December 2008 and obtained a certificate
of completion from the MBA programme of Renmin University of China
(B AR AE) in August 2002. He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in
botanical resources (B4 184%& &) from Jilin Agriculture University (&
MREZEKER) in July 1988. Mr. Huang has been studying in the Université
Paris — Dauphine under the Executive Doctorate in Business Administration
(EDBA) program since December 2013.

Mr. Huang Xiangbin is the father of Mr. Huang Zhijian, appointed as an
executive Director on 26 March 2024.
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Mr. Lei Shifeng (F1tt#£) (“Mr. Lei”), aged 57, was appointed as an
executive Director in March 2023. Mr. Lei joined the Group in April 2022
as the vice president of the Group, mainly responsible for administration,
human resources management, public affairs and information
management, and is also the director of Deyang Demei Medical Beauty
Hospital (1205 1= 3= 28 & = A 2 fx) and Sinco (Hainan) Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (ERIZ(FRE)IREZEEBRAR]). Mr. Lei served
as the president of Sichuan Guojing Xinlian Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd. (MU)I| & B & &5 (L e E 12 B R 2 7)) and the director of
Sichuan SRF Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (P94 B4 I L (g
#EEIRHR 7)) from December 2020 to March 2022. From July 2016
to November 2020, he was the general manager of Chengdu Sinco
Pharmaceutical Technology Co. Ltd. and Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Lei was also the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Chengdu
Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceuticals Technology Co., Ltd. and Sichuan
Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd. for the same period. From June
2007 to June 2016, Mr. Lei worked as the deputy general manager for
Sichuan Derentang Traditional Chinese Medicine Technology Co., Ltd. (/4
JIE{C B ERI I AR A A)), mainly responsible for procurement,
manufacturing and quality. From May 2001 to May 2007, he worked
as the deputy general manager of Chengdu Zhongxin Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (BxEBFR#TZEZ B R /A F]), mainly responsible for the overall
business operation and management. From July 1988 to April 2001, he
was a manager at Chengdu Traditional Chinese Medicine Company (5%
#BFR B4 2 A]), mainly responsible for the procurement and business
operation and management of its branches.

Mr. Lei obtained his bachelor’s degree from Jilin Agricultural University
(HFMBZEKRE) in July 1988 and the Certified Pharmacist qualification in
January 2000.

Mr. Huang Zhijian (Z& ) (“Mr. Huang Zhijian"”), aged 31, was
appointed as an executive Director on 26 March 2024. Mr. Huang Zhijian
joined the Group in January 2018 as the assistant product manager of
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (“Sichuan Sinco”). Mr. Huang
Zhijian was appointed as the general manager of Sichuan Sinco and
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Yusheng”) in
November 2022 and December 2022, respectively, mainly responsible for
overall business operation and management. Mr. Huang Zhijian is also
the director of Sichuan Sinco, Qingdao Yusheng, Sinco Shanghai Trading
Co., Ltd., Haikou Sinco Biological Medical Technology Co., Ltd., and Sinco
(Hainan) Investment Development Co., Ltd.. From June 2018 to November
2022, he was the sales manager of Sichuan Sinco. Mr. Huang Zhijian is
the son of Mr. Huang Xiangbin, the executive Director, chairman of the
Board and the substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Huang Zhijian obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from ESC PAU Business School in 2021 and graduated from Haikou
University of Economics in 2020 with a bachelor’s degree in financial
management.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2|Z4¢) (“"Mr. Lau”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 8 November 2018.
Mr. Lau is currently the finance and investor relations director, company
secretary of Dalipal Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1921). He is also an
independent non-executive director of Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 528), United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2337)
and Kangli International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6890). Mr. Lau
was an independent non-executive director of China Wood Optimization
(Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 1885) from December 2013 to February
2022, and from May 2012 to October 2020, he served as an independent
non-executive director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited, which
was delisted on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 5 July 2021.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in finance and
accounting in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. Wang Qing (GE#5) (“Mr. Wang"”), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent opinion to
the Board. Mr. Wang has been worked at Dalian University of Technology
(RUETE T AE) from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an
associate professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology
and was later promoted to professor in November 2010, responsible for
research and development and teaching. From March 2019 to July 2023,
Mr. Wang was the director of the Department of Pharmacy in the School
of Pharmaceutical Sciences at Dalian University of Technology. From July
1986 to September 1997, Mr. Wang worked as a pharmacist supervisor
at Liaoning Provincial Medical Company Limited (B2 & ZM BR EFA
al]), where he was responsible for drugs inspection and evaluation and
participated in research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. in therapy system from Kyushu Institute of
Technology (WM S T KE2) in Japan in March 2003 and a master’s
degree in therapy system from Kyushu Institute of Technology in March
2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in medicinal plants from
Jilin Agricultural University (Z5 #5222 K£2) in July 1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (£/325) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 86, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent opinion to
the Board. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2017 to present, he serves
as a senior technical consultant in Shanxi Kangbao Biological Product
Co., Ltd. (LB £ WE BB BRAF]). From July 2017 to September
2020, Mr. Liu Wenfang served as a senior technical consultant at China
Biologic Products Inc. (RHEYRBER AT, a company listed on
NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From February 2011 to July 2017, he served
as an independent director of China Biologic Products Inc.. From 2007 to
2011, Mr. Liu worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan Yuanda Shuyang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (I0)IER K &G EEEMH B R A E]) where he
was responsible for research and promoting new theories and applications
in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as the chief engineer
and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. GEBAM TN H
B2 /2 7)) where he was responsible for supervising manufacturing process
and quality management. From May 1998 to May 1999, Mr. Liu served
as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Biological Products Co., Ltd.
(B BIE LB HAR A E2 ) where he was responsible for research
and developing new products. From 1978 to 1988, Mr. Liu worked in
the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences
(Fh R B2 2R R # I AT 3T FT) and was engaged in the segregation and
purification of blood and protein and research, development and quality
analysis of blood products.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in biochemistry from the Shenyang
Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 B %} E2p57 &
F5 FE FA A= e At 3R FT) (formerly known as the Institute of Forestry and Soil
Sciences) in August 1963.

Mr. Bai Zhizhong (B&EH) (“Mr. Bai”), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 September 2020,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent opinion to
the Board. Mr. Bai has over 30 years of experience in the finance industry.
Mr. Bai served as the chairman of Bank of China Investment Management
Company Limited from January 2015 to June 2017. He worked with the
Bank of China from July 1995 to January 2015, where he had previously
served as the president of the Guangdong province branch, the Sichuan
province branch, the Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region branch and the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region branch of Bank of China, and as
the head of comprehensive planning division of Bank of China, Shanxi
Province branch.

Mr. Bai obtained a master degree in business administration from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC in 2007, and he was qualified
as a senior economist of Bank of China Assessment Committee of
Qualifications in Economic Professional Positions (H B £R 17 4% 775 2 3 5= 1T
B ERTEZEZ E®)in December 1994.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jin Min (£8) (“Mr. Jin"), aged 46, jointed our Group in February
2014 as the vice president of the marketing department of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and was appointed as a chief executive officer
of the Company in March 2023, in charge of the Group's overall business
development, operation and management. Mr. Jin is also the director of
Sinco (Hainan) Investment Development Co., Ltd.. Mr. Jin has over 19
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Jin worked for Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (&M
BBy H AR /AR from August 2001 to January 2014, and last served
as the director of the marketing department, responsible for product
promotion and management. Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor’s degree in
management in June 2001 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in
June 2000, both from Sun Yat-sen University, the PRC.

Mr. Li Yifan (Z=—11) (“Mr. Li"”), aged 44, joined the Group in February
2015 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and financing management of
the Group. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for
China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed on the HKSE (stock
code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and last served as the
deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial accounting and
management. From February 2005 to February 2011, Mr. Li successively
served as an auditor of the Shenzhen Branch and a senior auditor of
the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. Mr. Li obtained a
Master of Science’s degree in Finance from the University of Stirling in
January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University of Finance
and Economics (FARG A4S AE2) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree in
management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese certified public accountant since
January 2012.
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Mr. Zhang Tao (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 40, joined the Group in
November 2013 and was appointed as the President of Sichuan Sinco in
November 2022, mainly responsible for its overall business operation and
management. Mr. Zhang was successively the director of president office
and deputy general manager and general manager of Sichuan Sinco. Mr.
Zhang is also the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Technology
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu
Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing
Sinco Biological Medical Technology Co., Ltd., Haikou Sinco Biological
Medical Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengmeisheng Biotechnology
Co., Ltd., Deyang Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company and
Macao Sinco Limited. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked
for Chengdu Huide Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (X &= EE BRI AR
‘Aa]) from July 2010 to July 2012 as the project manager of the R&D
department and product registration manager successively. Mr. Zhang
obtained a Master’s degree of Science in Clinical Pharmacology from
University of Glasgow in December 2013 and graduated from Chengdu
University of TCM (B &BAR B2 %% K £3) in July 2007 with a bachelor’s degree
in pharmaceutical preparation. Mr. Zhang has been a licensed pharmacist
since December 2010.

Mr. Wu Qingjiang (RET) (“Mr. Wu"), aged 60, joined the Group
in September 2021 and was appointed as the vice president of the
Company, mainly responsible for the Group’s medical aesthetic business
sector and R&D centre. He is also the general manager of Chengdu
Hengmeisheng Biotechnology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wu, a senior engineer, has
over 40 years of experience in managing production and quality control of
pharmaceutical products and is familiar with the regulations about drug
administration and new drug research and development, and has won the
first prize of science and technology of the Chinese Association of Chinese
Medicine. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu served as the executive vice
president of Chengdu First Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from March 2019 to
August 2021. He served as the Co-chief Executive Officer of the Company
from May 2017 to February 2019, mainly responsible for the Group’s
overall business development, operational and management. Mr. Wu
served as an executive director in Chengdu Haizhong Investment Co., Ltd.
(KBNS R EBR A7) from 2014 to February 2017, held the position
of chairman and general manager in Sichuan Weiao Pharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd. (P9 )|| 4 B %55 FR 2 7)) and Sichuan Weiao Sanjiang Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd. (W)I1#R=TRBHR A7) from 1997 to 2015, worked as
an executive deputy general manager in Sichuan Jinhui Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (10)I| & #E2EE AR AF]) from 1995 to 1996, and successively
served as a technician, section manager, and deputy factory manager in
Sichuan lisheng Pharmaceutical Factory (P9)114& 54 %144 g) from 1983 to
1995. Mr. Wu graduated from the Department of Pharmacy of Chengdu
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine in July 1983 and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 26. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 81 of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2023 of HK$0.39 cents (2022: final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.98 cents) per ordinary share,
in an aggregate amount of HK$8,000,000 (2022: HK$20,000,000).
The dividend has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and
is subject to approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting. The final dividend has been calculated by reference to the
2,032,890,585 issued shares outstanding as at the date of this annual
report.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") will be held on
Thursday, 16 May 2024. A notice convening the AGM will be published
and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due course.
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Closure of the Register of Members for AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 10
May 2024 to Thursday, 16 May 2024, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Thursday, 16 May 2024. To be
eligible for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s relevant Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 9 May 2024.

Closure of the Register of Members for the
Distribution of Final Dividend

The register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2024
to Friday, 24 May 2024, both days inclusive, in order to qualify for
entitlement to the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell
Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 21 May 2024. Subject to the approval of Shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend will be paid on or
around Tuesday, 4 June 2024.

Financial Highlights

A highlights of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
highlights does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier accounted for 99.62% (2022: 99.47%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted
for 100% (2022: 100%) of our total products purchased.
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For the Reporting Period, the Group’s sales to the largest customer
accounted for 16.5% (2022: 31.3%) of our total revenue, and sales to
the five largest customers accounted for 39.06% (2022: 51.35%) of our
total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2023
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 84.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Cayman
Islands Companies Law and the Articles of Association, amounted to
approximately RMB223.4 million (as at 31 December 2022: RMB235.1
million).

Bank and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2023 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted the Share Option Scheme which became effective on 10 March
2016 (the “Listing Date").

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward to Eligible Participants (as defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

Eligible participants

The Board may, subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, grant options
at its discretion to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest, and to any company wholly owned by any one or
more persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants
who, at the absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which no further option will
be granted. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2023 is approximately 2 years and 2 months.

Total number of Shares available for offering

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 160,000,000 shares, representing 7.87%
of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total shares in issue.
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Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 shall be payable upon acceptance of the
grant of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may at its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the
earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of such
grant and (i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets on the date of grant of the option;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant of the option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.
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The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that

were still outstanding as at 31 December 2023 is as follows:

Grantee's name

ARALR

Number of options

BREHE
On
1 January
2023
12023E Cancelled

Granted Exercised

Lapsed
1A1A B i it b3

1R R BB AR 5T B R 20234 12 A31 B RAT
BRI T

(0]

31 December

#2023
128318

2023 Exercise
price® Date of grant

Tl RHAMH

Exercise period?

e

Employees in aggregate 0 0 0 0 0 0 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017~
EEA# 0.568%7 2016F9H218 20 September 2022
2175982118 F
2022494208
Notes: HisE -
(1) The exercise price shall be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of (1) fTEEMERUA T =FFH&RE : ()R201659A

)

HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotations sheets on 21
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (i) the average closing price
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotations sheets for
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

40% of the options granted may be vested and exercised upon one
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of
two years. The remaining 30% of the options granted may be vested and
exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.

)

21 R (VBRI B H) R B PT B R FTEA IR
MEFAR0.54087T « (MM NEZARBE L BT R
{E& 2 R EE BB AT A MR FHRTESR
0.568/ 7T + M(ii)itn E{E & A%0.00018 T °

BEBRENI0%IEE BE L B BB —F (A
2017%9A218) BEREXE—FEAI THBRITE -
BB RAER BN 30% 15 B A BB L B B AT M4 (AP
2018 9A210) BFHEZEMFR A TERERITE -
FHBRENR T 30% B8 BT L BT =F (B
2019F9A21A) AR EZE=F% A THRERITE -

2023 F#f
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman)

Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect from 29 March 2023)
Mr. Huang Zhijian (appointed with effect from 26 March 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Zhijian shall hold office only until the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang
Qing and Mr. Bai Zhizhong will retire and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 27 to 33 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of Appointments
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of
the service agreement, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the letter of appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

EEREAREEERE
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£33H °
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or
had any interest in any business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had an aggregate of 278 employees.
The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure for all remunerations of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and comparable
market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

With effect from 26 March 2024, Mr. Huang Zhijian is appointed as
an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Huang Zhijian has obtained
the legal advice from a firm of solicitors under Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules and confirmed that he understood his obligations as a director, on
8 March 2024. Mr. Huang Zhijian is the son of Mr. Huang Xiangbin, the
executive Director, chairman of the Board and the substantial shareholder
of the Company.
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Mr. Huang Zhijian entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of 3 years commencing from 26 March 2024 and shall
be automatically renewed thereafter unless terminated by either party
by giving at least one month’s written notice to the other party for early
termination of the service agreement. Mr. Huang is entitled to receive a
remuneration of RMB960,000 per annum. In addition, he is entitled to
a discretionary year-end bonus, benefits in kind and pension rights from
the Group subject to recommendation and approval by the Remuneration
Committee. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, there has
been no change to the information of the Directors which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including any interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company

Name of Director and

chief executive Nature of interest

ESRFERTHABES

EamME

ESRIFETRASRKRMD - HEARNGDK
EEPHNERRKXE

M2023F 128310 EERARREBITRAER
ARBHEA MR LR (FERES RS KOE
XVER) KB - BRI REHF - BB )BEFES

DEAEERISEXVERET R8H ERAME AN A 7] K BB
R D AR (BEREES KBAEGIE BIE
X HEWEERER AN EMERRAR)
(IR IEE S M EE G HI 35215 BREE R AR AT
BERELMANERS AR - kiR iR R 8%
TATH EMBEITAZEFETESFR S RIZESTRIZEAN
EARRNBNEBH IR ABIAT

(i) RARBRMDIAEEERDHER

Number of
Shares or
underlying
Shares®
MRAB
HERGEAO

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
interest®
A
BAE e

Mr. Huang® Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%
EHEAED REEEENER

Mr. Jin Min Beneficial owner 13,680,000(L) 0.67%
SHEE EnAA

Mr. Huang Zhijian® Beneficiary of a trust (other than 1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%

a discretionary trust)

RERLLES EREXEA(RERERI)

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest. Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the 1,050,000,000
Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  Mr. Huang Zhijian is one of the beneficiaries of a trust in which
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited is the trustee and holds the
entire interest in Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the
entire beneficial interest. Mr. Huang Zhijian is deemed to be interested
in the 1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

The percentage is based on the total number of 2,032,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that were required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following person/entities (other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Interestsin the Company

Nature of interest

Risun@ Beneficial owner
Fullwealth Holdings Limited®
REEZE R
Trustee
XA

Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited®

Interest in controlled corporation

M EXFrEEE SN - 2023F12A31H » ARAE
ERFBTHRAESMERNAA SRR E®E(E
ERBHRHAEEXVE) B, - BERG SKEHF
HEA AR AEE REES M EIEY 53526850
BRANBATEENELMANTRAESSIAS
FARIEIZ AR A RITANE AR R R E BB FTHE
RIS SRR ©

ggﬂﬁimﬁfﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂP HIRE S &K
MR2023F 128318 » REEBMFAA - RIBAQAIE
REHFRPEKFIEIBKAETEENTDMALTT
8 UTAL / BEE(EEXAQAAETBITHRAER
SN AR SARRARR () P B IRIEE F AR E (601 5
XVEBEE2 K 393 B A 16 S B M1 AR 1 A4 B8 A A 2 oAk

A

(i) RARTHER

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
Number of Shares® interest®
BRHEEO BRESAES O
1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%
1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%
1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Fullwealth Holdings Limited, Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited and Mr. Huang are deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The percentage is based on the total number of 2,032,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2023.
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#= ° Fullwealth Holdings Limited + Wickhams Cay
Trust Company Limited &2 & & £ 9 18 BB
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Related Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang as
disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements is a related
transaction exempted from the announcement, reporting, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above related transaction.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Non-competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Huang and Risun, the controlling Shareholders
of the Company, entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of
the Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group),
pursuant to which they have undertaken, subject to the restrictions and
certain exceptions as mentioned in the Prospectus, that they would not,
and would procure that none of their associates (other than any member
of our Group) will, directly or indirectly, engage in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our Group'’s
business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or any other places
where our Group carries on business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
Shareholders confirming their compliance with the deed of non-
competition during the Reporting Period.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations of nil
(2022: RMB10,000).

Disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
disclosure obligations under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding the
provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements under
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
disclosure obligations under rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with such
code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 51 to 73 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.
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Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor

Ernst & Young (“EY") resigned as auditor of the Company with effect
from 8 December 2022. CL Partners CPA Limited (“CL Partners”) has
been appointed by the Board as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 13 December 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of EY. Details of the change of auditor have been disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2022 and 13
December 2022.

Save for the above, there has been no other change of auditors in the past
three years. A resolution for re-appointment of CL Partners as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Significant Event after the Reporting Period
Appointment of executive Director

With effect from 26 March 2024, Mr. Huang Zhijian is appointed as
an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Huang Zhijian has obtained
the legal advice from a firm of solicitors under Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules and confirmed that he understood his obligations as a director,
on 8 March 2024. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 March 2024.

Resignation of joint company secretary and change of
authorised representative

With effect from 26 March 2024, Mr. Li Kin Wai has resigned as the joint
company secretary of the Company and an authorised representative of
the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules. Following Mr. Li Kin
Wai's resignation, Ms. Peng Yunlu, the other Joint Company Secretary will
remain in office as the sole company secretary of the Company. Ms. Peng
has also been appointed as the authorised representative with effect from
26 March 2024 in replacement of Li Kin Wai. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 26 March 2024.
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Change of company logo

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 April 2024,
the Company’s logo has been changed with effect from 9 April 2024.
The new logo will be printed on relevant corporate documents (including
but not limited to interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
notices, share certificates and press releases) of the Company and will
be displayed on the Company’s website. The change of the Company’s
logo will not affect any of the rights of the existing shareholders of the
Company.

Other than the above, the Board is not aware of any material event
requiring disclosure has occurred subsequent to 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this report.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 14.36B of the
Listing Rules

Reference is made to the section headed “Acquisition of Demei
Company” in this annual report and the announcement of the Company
dated 22 March 2022 (the “2022 Announcement”) in respect of, among
others, the entering into of the equity transfer agreements (the “Equity
Transfer Agreements”) between the Purchaser and the Vendor in respect
of the sale and purchase of the entire equity interest in Demei Company.

As disclosed in the 2022 Announcement, pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreements, the third installment of RMB18,900,000 shall be paid by
Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company in a lump sum within 30 days
upon the official issuance of each audit data of Demei Company after
the end of all the performance commitment years of 2022 (from the
Completion Date to 31 December 2022), 2023 (for the period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023) and 2024 (for the period from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024). If the target net profit of any
year has not been achieved, the third installment shall be reduced in
accordance with the Equity Transfer Agreements.
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Report of the Directors EE &<

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March
2022, pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreements, the specific target
results which shall be achieved for each year are as follows (the net profit
for each year below is hereinafter referred to as the “annual target net
profit”):

(1) the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring profit and
loss shall not be less than RMB5.0 million (RMB5,000,000) for 2022.

(2) the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring profit and
loss shall not be less than RMB8.5 million (RMB8,500,000) for 2023.

(3) the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring profit
and loss shall not be less than RMB10.6 million (RMB10,600,000) for
2024.

According to the audit data, if the actual annual net profit of Demei
Company for 2022, 2023 and 2024 > 80% of the annual target net
profit and the sum of the actual net profit for the three years > the sum
of the target net profit for the three years, Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited
Company shall pay the third installment in full.

Based on the information available, the actual net profit after the
deduction of non-recurring profit and loss of Demei Company for 2023
is RMB8.7 million. The actual annual net profit of Demei Company for
2023 > 80% of the annual target net profit for 2023. Therefore, the third
installment will not be adjusted for the time being.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 22 April 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company has always complied with all
applicable code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation
from Code Provision C.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company are outlined later
in this report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Purpose, Values and Strategy

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to attain its vision
and strategy. It is the Board's role to foster a corporate culture with the
following core principles and to ensure that the Company’s goal, values
and business strategies are aligned to it. The Group strives to maintain
high standards of business ethics and corporate governance across all
our activities and operations. The Directors, management and staff are all
required to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly. Trainings are conducted
from time to time to reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics
and integrity.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors the Group's business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
daily management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the internal control and corporate governance committee (the
"ICCG Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition and Mechanisms Ensuring
Independent Views and Input Available to the Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Huang Xiangbin

Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect from 29 March 2023)
Mr. Huang Zhijian (appointed with effect from 26 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will
be immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will,
when determining the composition of the Board, consider Board
diversity in terms of, among other things, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Board
Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity on the
Board. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, all Board appointments will
be based on merits, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. The
establishment of Board Diversity Policy ensures that independent views
and input are made available to the Board. To ensure that independent
non-executive Directors can provide independent views and input to
the Board, the independence of independent non-executive Directors is
assessed by the Nomination Committee at the time of their appointment
and on an annual basis.
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As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the mechanisms ensuring independent views and
input available to the Board and is of the view that the mechanisms
worked well to ensure that the Board had access to independent views
and input.

The Board currently has no female Director. The Board would continue to
take initiatives to identify suitable candidates so as to appoint at least one
female Director on the Board no later than 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professional skills to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the ICCG Committee.

As the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as the identity and the time involved to
the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments and
any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Mr. Lei Shifeng and Mr. Huang Zhijian, who have been appointed as the
executive Director with effect from 29 March 2023 and 26 March 2024
respectively. They have obtained the legal advice referred to the Rule 3.09D
of the Listing Rules on 29 March 2023 and 8 March 2024 respectively.
They have confirmed that they understood their obligations as a director
of the Company.

Gender Diversity

As of 31 December 2023, approximately 40% and 60% of the Group’s
employees were male and female, respectively. The Group recognises
the value of gender diversity to promote a diverse and inclusive working
environment and welcomes male and female representation at all levels.
However, the Group currently does not consider it appropriate to set
any specific gender target for its workforce. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group also takes into account other relevant factors in its
hiring decisions and considers that the gender ratio of the workforce of
the Group is appropriate for its current business model and operational
needs.
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Dividend Policy
The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 21
December 2018. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to consider the payment of dividends, to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company's profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group'’s future growth.

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

- the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

—  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

—  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

- other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to certain restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association.
The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction training
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
his/her duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2023 is as follows:

RIFZEZMREMNER - EERNEE2023F12A31
BB EFEAEZOEIHENT

Nature of Continuous
Professional

Development Programmes

Name of Director

Executive Director HITEF

Mr. Huang Xiangbin EEWEE

Mr. Lei Shifeng BEigkE
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHBTEE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BT GESEE

Mr. Wang Qing pasti-pitad

Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 S =

Mr. Bai Zhizhong AR A

FEEXRBRITHNME

A, C&D A-CKkD
A, C&D A-CKkD

A, B,C&D A-B-CKkD
A, B,C&D A-B-CKkD
cC&D CkD

A, C&D A-CKkD

Notes:

A.  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings
B.  Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums
C.  Attending training relevant to the Company’s business conducted by lawyers

D.  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and
responsibilities, the Listing Rules and other relevant ordinances

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Mr. Huang was the Chairman of the Board and the co-chief executive
officer of the Company (“Co-CEQ") for the period from 1 January
2023 to 29 March 2023. With Mr. Huang's extensive experience in
the pharmaceutical industry, the Board considered that vesting the
roles of Chairman and Co-CEO in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Group. The check and
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprise experienced and high calibre
individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes that this arrangement will not
impact on the balance of power and authorisations between the Board
and the management of the Company. On 29 March 2023, Mr. Huang
resigned as the Co-CEO. Upon Mr. Huang’s resignation as a Co-CEO, the
other Co-CEO, Mr. Jin Min (“Mr. Jin"), became the chief executive officer
of the Company. Subsequent to Mr. Huang’s resignation as a Co-CEO
of the Company, the Company has confirmed there is no deviation from
the Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which stated that the roles of
Chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company will continuously
review and comply with Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as set out
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM, and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
despatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, 4 Board meetings and 1 general meeting
were held and the attendance records of each Director are set out below:

Directors

Exg23

ARBBEMBTEREEHR  BFELOR - AKX
BEERTEH - MAEFSTERBAKNEHR
RITAZL 4R ZXELREF  FHAKSHFS
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REHMEFEREFZBEERME - ARF—KRE
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EXREEZEINEREHESH RS SRS
MG TImNEERRNERRTA AR ERIRES
HENER - ERCEABFERIRMERT - BIAK
REREEMEMN  UH2E R -
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RENFTEERES  UHKSREER -E22g9
BN EHRTHEUHESSER -

R|WEHA - KBTARESEERRIABERAE
BEENHFECEEAIINT

Attended/
Eligible to attend

Attended/

Eligible to attend

the general meeting(s)
BHE AHE
REREIRE

the Board meeting(s)
EHE AIHE
EEEEERH

Mr. Huang Xiangbin HEW A 4/4 1”1

Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect Bt 84 (7202343 A29H 4/4 11
from 29 March 2023) BEEE)

Mr. Huang Zhijian (appointed with effect EHERRLE(R202453H26R 0/0 0/0
from 26 March 2024) EZ(E)

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BIRAGEAEE 4/4 11

Mr. Wang Qing AR A 4/4 11

Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 ke 4/4 11

Mr. Bai Zhizhong frtaslinta 4/4 11
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company'’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during the
Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision rights over all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and ICCG Committee

The ICCG Committee currently comprises five members, including
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lei Shifeng and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu
Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai Zhizhong.

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of all Directors and delegates the corporate governance
duties to the ICCG Committee, which includes, without limitation:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

(f)  to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the ICCG Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, 2 ICCG Committee meetings were held and
the attendance records are set out below:

RB|EMA - KBT2RAMESREREERE

I
8

\
A

g HECHESHINMT

Attendance/
Number of meeting(s)
Directors HERY, EFRE
Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect E g4 (7A2023F3 A29H 2/2
from 29 March 2023) EZ(E)
Mr. Lau Ying Kit B E 2/2
Mr. Wang Qing AR A 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang RN EE 2/2
Mr. Bai Zhizhong HEFREE 2/2
Audit Committee EREER
The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit BEZZEE€ENEKE @ BREJRGEEE(ER) - 2
(chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai Zhizhong, all of ~ X5 %4 ~ ABEAERBAEFREE - BEHRE I
them are independent non-executive Directors. WITESE -
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the ~FEZZEEMEE2HEAEETRNATEIE :

following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the
work performed by the Auditor, its fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Auditor;

(b) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the interim
results for the period ended 30 June 2023 during the Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, 4 Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance records of the Audit Committee meeting are set out
below:

Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit AR E
Mr. Wang Qing SERE L
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 e
Mr. Bai Zhizhong ER %A

RBEMA - KBTARERZ B EH  EKZE
SEENLFELEEIINT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

HERS, BB

4/4
a/4
4/4
4/4

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members,
including one executive Director, namely Mr. Lei Shifeng, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Qing (chairman),
Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Bai Zhizhong.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
cancellation of appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

FMEES
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5.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
cancellation of appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for their misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

9. to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were
held and the attendance records are set out below:

5. EEABRLBARXNNHSD - RARRREEA
FEHEME - ARAEEE M EAIE ARG

6. WERIERNITEERSREEE A EBERN
RIS BUB R RN ROMRE - AR E R
BRGR—B BRERSQOERET B &
BETARNTFMAZES

i
REBREZRSE - RS EREE A5 —
BREEANGERLET -3 RETERERE
K

8. MRIUEBEFRNHEMBRACEERR LTHRA)
SEBTEREAZHOHH

9. FHEE/HHEETRAUNEITEETHRERN
FHEIMEER -

FMEZERENEARBREECEREBBMIARAR
AIABL

RIEHA - AB2AFNEE SR  HELiR
HyT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors HERE EERE
Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect Bt $85E 4 (7202343 A29H 2/2

from 29 March 2023) BEZRE)

Mr. Wang Qing AR A 2/2
Mr. Bai Zhizhong HEAE 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B AL 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director, namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive officer;
and

5. toreview the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
a number of criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to
commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the
Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, 2 Nomination Committee meetings were
held and the attendance records are set out below:

Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin mIEWEE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit B AR &
Mr. Liu Wenfang BISs

REZES

REZEGHEAMA=BKE  BE—BHTESEN
WHRE(ERE)  ARMBBILIFNTERI O EE
RBIRGERAE -

REZEENIZBREBEUTEE

1. BEELRI-REFENERE - ABRMAK
(BIEEE - AR REER) - AR A ARMD
ERBABMONTIMNEERNESSREHEER
=3

2. VEABREERMALHEESENRE X
BREHEEEHARETREXMESTSREM
HEER

3. AMEEIMIFITESAELIE

4. PREEREFZTEFREF(LEEXFERT
BRI ENESSRMEREER &

5. REEFEZITIHEE -

EEEARENSTLAERREARELE - BI
S - B8 - AL TR B AR AORS
MRS HESERBERRSEFORS - B4
ZERNHEERERED A ESHH AL S
2 o

RIEHA  BEEMARZEESEE  HEiLiR
HyT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

HERE, ERRE

2/2
2/2
2/2
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Nomination Policy

1

3

64

Objective

1.1 The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

1.2 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Director at general meetings or
appoint him/her as Director to fill causal vacancies.

1.3 The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) helps the Nomination Committee and the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Group’s business.

Selection Criteria

2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(1) Reputation for integrity;

(2) Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(3) Diversity of the Board in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age (above 18 years old), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and are not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures
3.1 Appointment of Directors
(1) The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, and assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive Director(s) as appropriate.

(2) The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.
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(3) The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by
the Nomination Committee after having due regard to
the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

(4) The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s)
as Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand
for election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed
by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board will also be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, in accordance
with the Article of Association.

(5) The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meetings, as
Director(s).

3.2 Re-appointment of Directors
(1)  The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy, and assesses the independence
of each retiring independent non-executive Director.

(2)  The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

(3) The Board considers each retiring Director recommended
by the Nomination Committee after having due regard to
the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

(4) The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for
re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

(5) The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors at
the AGM.

3.3 The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for all matters
relating to the selection and appointment of Directors.

4 Review of the Nomination Policy
4.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 32 to 33
of this annual report, for the Reporting Period are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

EERSREEEHH
EEHMFBENAFREAMBHERMES - 2R
EEE(RENEERNAFREINEIZE)NEREN
MEVEE ST -

Number of individual

FMEE (ARW)

1,000,000 - 2,000,000
Below 1,000,000

1,000,000% 2,000,000 f& 1
1,000,000L4

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting
in Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
business and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to 79 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets and
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis. During
the Year, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.
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As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 26 September
2022, 30 September 2022, 24 October 2022, 8 December 2022, 13
December 2022, 4 January 2023, 21 March 2023, 27 April 2023, 18
May 2023, 10 July 2023 and 27 September 2023, the Company, on 15
September 2022, received a letter from Ernst & Young (“EY"), being the
then auditor of the Company, informing that there might be possible
internal control irregularities (the “Incident”), which involved transactions
that took place in January 2022 with a sum equivalent to US$13 million
(approximately HK$100 million).

On 17 September 2022, the Board resolved to establish an independent
committee to review and investigate the Incident. The independent
committee is comprised of four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit, Mr. Wang Qing, Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Bai
Zhizhong.

On 20 September 2022, the Independent Committee appointed Diligent
Capital Limited as its financial advisor and C&T Legal LLP as its legal
advisor to assist in the investigation. After conducting a preliminary
assessment of the situation, the Independent Committee was of the view
that the current information and evidence available to the Company were
insufficient and therefore a proper investigation on the Incident with the
assistance of an external forensic accountant was necessary. Accordingly,
on 21 December 2022, the independent committee appointed Grant
Thornton Advisory Services Limited (the “Forensic Accountant”) as an
independent forensic accountant to conduct an independent forensic
investigation into the Incident (the “Forensic Investigation”) and produce
a report on the findings of the Forensic Investigation to be presented to
the independent committee.

On 21 April 2023 the Independent Committee engaged Moore Advisory
Services Limited as the Internal Control Consultant to review the findings
from the Forensic Investigation Report to ensure the Company has
established adequate and effective controls to minimize the risk identified.

The Independent Committee received the final Forensic Investigation
Report from the Forensic Accountant on 4 July 2023 and the final internal
control review report (the “Internal Control Review Report”) from the
Internal Control Consultant on 27 September 2023. During the Report
Period, the Company has already adopted rectification measures to
address the key internal control deficiencies. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 27 September 2023.
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The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial conditions and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control systems to be effective and
adequate.

Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework is structured in the following
"Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide:

AEENARBRZAPIEERARRAE R ME
TEZAE - AREXHPINEIERAERRTAAF
HBATE AR B BRI - 3 B R EEAR A R BT
BOXHBERKBAR -

EFFCMA AN S E AR E RN A B R R
A RAeZEREENAIZEFHRRERATR -

FEfEERABEFRENEREH

AEBEMERERERATEIRO —BRRIER
tERES!

Board of Directors

=g

iy

i)

ICCG Committee
NEBEGI R EEEREZES

Audit Committee
BZEEE

{3 i)

{3

2nd Line of Defence:
Risk Management and Internal Control Team
F B - R E R R A ED S E

3rd Line of Defence:
Internal Audit Department
F=EMLR - NEEIZERM

{3

1st Line of Defence:
All Business Departments
FBIR - BEBEM

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the ICCG Committee and the Audit
Committee. Such review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023, with all the above major control aspects covered. Regarding the
Incident which involved transactions that took place in January 2022
with a sum equivalent to US$13 million (approximately HK$100 million),
the external forensic accountant had identified certain deficiencies in
the Group's internal control systems. In this respect, the Company has
already adopted rectification measures to address the key internal control
deficiencies. Having considered the Internal Control Review Report
and the remedial actions taken by the Group, in particular, the Internal
Control Consultant had performed follow-up reviews on the enhanced
internal control measures adopted by the Group, the Independent
Committee and the Board are of the view that (i) the above key internal
control deficiencies have been remediated and the related risks have been
managed to a reasonably acceptable level; and (ii) the remedial actions
and improvement measures implemented by the Company are adequate
and sufficient to address the key findings of the Internal Control Review
Report.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control systems to be effective and
adequate.

The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considered the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reported to and raised suggestions
to the Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team (the “Team”) organises
business departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that
may have a potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the
implementation of proper measures and internal control regulations to
address major risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes
measures to reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response
to and follow up of the investigation results of internal control from
the internal audit department (the “Internal Audit Department”), and
confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk management
and internal control systems.
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3rd Line of Defense
The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee.

In addition, the Internal Audit Department raises suggestions to the Board
and the management, to address major institutional inadequacies or any
control loopholes spotted.

Procedures Applied to Identifying, Assessing and
Managmg Major Risks
Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

- Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and the possibility of their
occurrence, and assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures to avert or reduce risks

—  Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Whistleblowing Policy

The Board adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing Policy”)
in April 2015 and further updated it in March 2021 and May 2023.
The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a culture of
compliance, ethical behaviour and good corporate governance across
the Group; and (ii) promote the importance of ethical behaviour and
encourage the reporting of misconduct, unlawful and unethical behavior.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the Audit
Committee or the human resource director of the Group. No incident of
fraud or misconduct that have material effect on the Group’s financial
statements or overall operation for the year ended 31 December 2023 has
been discovered.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Anti-corruption Policy

The Board adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-corruption Policy”)
in April 2015 and further updated it in March 2021 and May 2023. The
Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of integrity and
ethical behaviour in conducting business. The Anti-corruption Policy
forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate governance framework.
The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the specific behavioural guidelines
that the Group’s personnel and business partners must follow to combat
corruption. It demonstrates the Group’s commitment to the practice of
ethical business conduct and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws
and regulations that apply to its local and foreign operations. In line with
this commitment and to ensure transparency in the Group's practices,
the Anti-corruption Policy has been prepared as a guide to all Group
employees and third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically to align
with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry best
practice.

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Audit Department's
main responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal
control of the Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with
department managers and senior management on the identified problems,
non-compliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification
and improvement solutions. The Internal Audit Department also follows
up such rectification results, and reports to the ICCG Committee and the
Audit Committee.

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

e  Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e  The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e  The Investor Relations Department and the Company Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and keeping scanned copies of such information
disclosure documents and announcements.
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Auditor's Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB2.3 million. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect
of non-audit services.

Company Secretary
During the Reporting Period, Ms. Peng Yunlu (“Ms. Peng”), one of our
joint company secretaries of the Company, is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policies and procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

During the Reporting Period, in order to uphold good corporate
governance and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable
Hong Kong laws, the Company also engaged Mr. Li Kin Wai (“Mr. Li")
of Tricor Services Limited as another joint company secretary to assist Ms.
Peng to discharge her duties as company secretary of the Company. The
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Peng, one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Peng and Mr. Li have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Li Kin Wai as the joint company
secretary of the Company on 26 March 2024, Ms. Peng shall act as the
sole Company Secretary of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions. During the Reporting Period, the
Board has considered and reviewed the communication mechanism with
investors (Shareholders included) and considers it to be effective.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE as and when appropriate after
each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding together, as at date of deposit of the
requisition, shares representing not less than one-tenth of the voting
rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the Company which carry the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or company secretaries of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to
convene such meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North Section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC (Email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The second amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
association of the Company was adopted on 13 May 2022 and became
effective from the Listing Date. During the Reporting Period, there were
no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 189,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETEE

Revenue recognition

BB W

The Group recognises revenue when the amount can be
reliably estimated, when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and the control of the goods
is transferred to the buyer. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group recognised revenue of RMB2,540 million.
Some terms of sales arrangements with customers including the
timing of transfer of control of goods, delivery specifications,
generate complexity and judgement in determining sales
revenues and revenue cut-off. The risk is, therefore, that
revenue is not recognised in the correct period or that revenue
and the associated profit is misstated.

The Group’s disclosures about revenue is included in notes 2.4,
3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:

e understanding the revenue recognition policy and
performing tests of controls on revenue recognition;

. reviewing sales contracts and supplementary agreements
to check the relevant key terms of revenue recognition;

e performing analytical procedures by comparing the unit
selling price, the sales volumes and gross margin to that
in prior years by products and by month;

e obtaining confirmation from key customers and reviewing
the reconciliation of any material difference by checking
to related documents;

e performing the cut-off test for revenue recognised
before and subsequent to the end of reporting period
so as to check whether revenue is accounted for in the

appropriate period; and

e assessing the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRETEE

Impairment of goodwill

00

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to the significance to the consolidated financial

statements as a whole and significant judgement involved in
the management’s assessment process.

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the net carrying amounts of goodwill at 31
December 2023 was RMB66,536,000. In estimating the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill have been allocated, the management has made a
number of key assumptions in the value in use calculation. The
key assumptions include growth rates, discount rates applied
and the forecast performance based on management’s view of
future business prospects.
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BEENETNMEERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of goodwill
included:

e  Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

e Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry;

e  Evaluating the historical accuracy and the growth rate of
the financial budget used in the discounted cash flows by
comparing the historical budget to actual results;

e  Testing a selection of data inputs underpinning the cash
flow forecasts against appropriate supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets, to assess the accuracy and
reliability;

e Obtaining an understanding of the management’s control
procedures of the impairment assessment and assessing
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and the judgement
involved in determining assumptions to be applied;

e Assessing the sensitivity analysis prepared by management
on the significant assumptions to evaluate the extent of
impact on the discounted cash flows; and

e Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate.
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Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y83 AZEHH¥R &
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{Z=2023F 12 A31HILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y83 AZEHH ¥R &
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{Z=2023F 12 A31BILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y83 AZEHH¥R &
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{Z=2023F 12 A31HILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

CL Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Wai Chi

Practising Certificate Member: P07830
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

reBnkEMaEERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 #,Z2023%12 A31HILFE

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Other expenses and losses

Changes in fair value of contingent
consideration at fair value through
profit or loss

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company:

Basic
— For profit for the year (RMB)

Diluted
— For profit for the year (RMB)

W
SHERMA

E7

HABW A R W 2w
HE MEIHRX
TS
B S RUGRRERE
B
FEATENBOR - HibEEERIA
REMEENTREERE
BB
HAFI X KB 1E
BAFER AR

BATERAR

BRBEADE R
PSR

FREANREERE
B

EN/NSIE 2PN

RARERA
EEERER

BN
—FREMARE)

e
—FREMARE)

10

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
2,540,063 2,271,505
(2,216,783) (1,965,637)
323,280 305,868
14,625 25,240
(93,713) (117,016)
(108,862) (81,423)
(4,245) (6,205)
- 279
(13,770) (6,485)
(3,000) (2,633)
(14,434) (18,333)
99,881 99,292
(57,529) (29,830)
42,352 69,462
42,352 69,462
0.021 0.034
0.021 0.034
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Right-of-use assets

Other intangible assets
Payments in advance

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

E R I B
BEME
EREEE
HibE\LEE
JERFIR

5k

BB EE

FRBEERE

REBEE

e

B 5 M A R B %

B FIE - HAaEREUA R
Hip&E

BIIRER

RITEBREIES

REBEEAE

REAE
B HRNFRRENRE
BHEE
HoA 8 5 R0R K e At IR
RITREFK
e IR
HERE

REBAEAE

REBEEFE

HEERRBAE

11
12
13
14

24
15

16
17

18
19
19

20
21
22
23

13

2023 2022
RMB000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
279,083 258,109
6,139 6,319
75,125 57,730
27,109 15,001

- 231

66,536 66,536
3,403 3,001
457,395 406,927
108,026 88,148
540,505 351,268
126,804 140,994
220,026 107,852
437,922 329,144
1,433,283 1,017,406
866,585 407,988
40,456 75,429
53,862 117,927
240,857 180,806
26,444 5,437
3,833 2,998
1,232,037 790,585
201,246 226,821
658,641 633,748
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %24 B SRR
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 23 886 922
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFHIEEE 15 1,800 2,250
Contingent consideration at fair value BATEF ABRHIARE
through profit or loss 25 22,078 19,078
Lease liabilities HERE 13 5,825 7,686
Total non-current liabilities FFRBEEREE 30,589 29,936
Net assets EEEE 628,052 603,812
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AEGER
the Company
Issued capital BT 26 164 164
Reserves & 28 627,888 603,648
Total equity RERAEE 628,052 603,812
Huang Xiangbin Lei Shifeng
EHHEW Eitteg
Director Director
EFE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
g A L st =

Year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023%12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LTINS

(Accumulated

Share Share losses)
Issued premium  Contributed Statutory option Other refained Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserves profits equity

B8 v RER (RitER)
e ik RERR  LRERG B REEE  REREW  Bald
RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO

ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn  ARETT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
(note26)  (note 28@)  (note 28b)  (note 28(c)
At 1 January 2022 R0NEIA1H 151 365,774 4,250* 26417 19* 4,014* (25,939 374,886
Profit and total comprehensive income EREHR2ERE -
for the year k] - - - - - 69,462 69,462
Issue of new shares BTk 13 165,518 - - - - - 165,531
Share issue expenses ROETRT - (6,067) - - - - - (6,067)
Lapse of share options (note 27) BREXR ) - - - - (219 - 219 -
Transfer to retained profis ERTRBEN - - - - - (4014) 4014 -
Transfer to statutory resenve BRTITRE - - - 3310 - - (3310) -
At 31 December 2022 20225128317 164 525,25+ 4,250* 29727 - - 44 446* 603812
At 1 January 2023 R0BE1A1A 164 525,25+ 4,250* 29721 - - 44,446* 603,812
Profit and total comprehensive income EREHR2ERE
for the year g - - - - - - 4235 4352
Dividends recognised as distribution DENRARE - - - - - - (18,112) (18,112)
At 31 December 2023 RABENENA 164 525,225+ 4,250% 29,721 - - 68,686 628,052

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB627,888,000 *  #ZEHEEREESFAHBERARANGARBARE
(2022: RMB603,648,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 627,888,0007C(20224F : AR¥603,648,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Iﬁzﬁl)ll’%%
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Year ended 31 December 2023 #,Z2023%12 A31HILFE

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKETFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E#EBIFEESRE
Profit before tax BR 5 A 7 99,881 99,292
Adjustments for: AT HIEAE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #% - B kREITE 7 7,703 5,608
Depreciation of investment property BREENE 7 180 180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELEITE 7 5,433 3,569
Amortisation of other intangible asset H b8 i 7 3,003 1,999
Unrealised foreign exchange losses/(gains), net REIRIE H B (k) F 58 7 8,389 (15,980)
Interest income from financial assets BRAFEFABENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss T2 A 5 (6) (1,121)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB MREWE
equipment 5 (36) -
Finance costs B TSR AR 6 14,434 18,333
Bank interest income RITHEHA 5 (5,961) (1,301)
Provision for impairment loss on trade B 5 UGB REE R
receivables B 7 4,245 6,205
Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets 5T AFBf 7B « EfbERZIE
included in prepayments, other receivables MEMEENSREERE
and other assets JictEdm) 7 = 279)
Changes in fair value on financial liabilities at BATEFABRNEREE
fair value through profit or loss AT EZS 25 3,000 2,633
Operating cash flows before movements BEBSFBRINLE
in working capital Beks 140,265 119,138
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 FEUGRIE K R IRIE AN (195,890) (133,872)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables TARTFRIE « Efth FEUSCHRIE K EoAth
and other assets BERD 40,639 136,846
Increase in inventories FEEM (19,878) (26,878)
Decrease/(increase) in payments in advance R IR L, () 231 (62)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables B o RENZERENEE
a0 Crid) 444,179 (21,196)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — E i B~ 5138 & fE =+ 5/ IB G A0,
Cr) 10,540 (8,216)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHEECRD), B (34,973) 47,680
Cash generated from operations EEMBRSE 385,113 113,440
Interest received B E 5,961 1,301
Hong Kong tax paid BERBEERIE (5,786) (5,924)
Singapore tax paid [EAREAPIIESE e (3,770) =
PRC tax paid BB IE (27,818) (33,736)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETBRERENETFH 353,700 75,081

2023 3R FMEIEEB BT HR AR

85



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZERERER
Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31HILFE

2023 2022

Notes RMB’000 RMB‘000

ARBTT

B s AR¥T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEHFEESHKE
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEWHE  BEAREERE
equipment (29,550) (52,691)
Purchase of wealth management products BEIBARATERA

classified as financial assets at fair value BRfEmEED

through profit or loss AT @ (10,000) (80,000)
Payments for right-of-use asset FREEENMR (19,880) -
Additions to other intangible assets RNEREMENEE (15,111) -
Redemption of wealth management products BESBEARATERTA

classified as financial assets at fair value BafEmEED

through profit or loss B ER 10,000 80,000
Interest income from financial assets at fair AT ERT ABZH

value through profit or loss SRUEERFIEHA 5 6 1,121
Proceeds for disposal of property, plant and HEWME  BER

equipment FEPTIFIA 909 300
Acquisition of subsidiaries g D)= NG 24 - (68,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities  REEZHFFARLSRETHE (63,626) (119,270)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®REEZSHMERESRE
Principal portion of lease payments HENTNAEEHH (3,970) (2,612)
Interest portion of lease payments HENROFI S D 13 (453) (433)
Interest paid BAFLE (13,981) (17,900)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE PTG A 180,015 180,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BRBIRITIER (120,000) (338,836)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HA e FIB R ERRIA

accruals, net W), R (74,605) 72,719
Issue of new shares BITER = 159,464
Increase in pledged deposits [mEEEGEE 6Pl (112,174) (52,837)
Dividend paid BERRE (18,112) =
(Decrease)/increase in prepayments, other TERFUR - HMRERERIE R

receivables and other assets, net HEECRD),/ I INFE (26,449) 35,478
Net cash flows (used in)/from BMEEE (A, Fid

financing activities REFRE (189,729) 35,043
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R & T2 R
Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023%12A31HILEE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes

P &E

RERRESSEYEN
(B2) B8
SNEFE R B B FE

i%ﬂfﬁ(ﬁ&fﬁ{ﬁvf%%

FRAER
RELEN

RERBEEED
BT
A MBHRRKRMIRITHER R
e 19

GRUSRERMIRER
REZSEY

2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
100,345 (9,146)
8,433 12,238
329,144 326,052
437,922 329,144
437,922 329,144
437,922 329,144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BB ERRMEE

31 December 2023 2023%12H31H
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Corporate and Group Information

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2015. The controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company are Mr. Huang Xiangbin and Risun Investments
Limited (“Risun”). The registered office address of the Company is
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at Room 2403, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in marketing, promotion, channel
management activities for the sale of improved human plasma-
based pharmaceuticals, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals
focused on therapeutic areas and complementary to human plasma
based products and other fast-growing categories, research and
development of aesthetic medicine and provision of medical beauty
services in Mainland China.

In the prior year, the Group’s research and development of
the polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler for injection was
progressing smoothly and had started trial production for the
research purpose in the second half of the prior year, it was
separately managed as the research and manufacturing of aesthetic
medicine segment. Besides, the Group acquired Deyang Demei
Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company ({5153 B R 5
BIR/A7F]) (“Demei Company”), a medical beauty services provider
(as further detailed in note 24), which was managed as the medical
beauty services segment.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (“the Director”),
Risun, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”)
ultimately controlled by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, is the parent and the
ultimate holding company of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R RKIzE
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

ARAREEER(E)
WEAREN
AAFMBARENT -

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business

MR SRR
EEE SR

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER/
AR A

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
KRS
BRI
Direct Indirect
i it
% %

Principal activities

Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
EEREZRERLA BVI 50,000% 7T REER
2013F 117268
ERGARES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 Us$1 100 - Investment holding
EEARAT BVI ES REER
20168 A5H
EERARES
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals 17 February 2011 Us$10,000,000 100 - Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China 10,000,000 7T HEER
REBENAEZEFR A 201142R17R
E/HER
Hong Kong Prosperous Group 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Holding Limited Hong Kong 1007T HEER
EREREEERARAR 2013F 124208
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
S AR AR Hong Kong 17T REER
20168 H26H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

ARREEEH(E)
MEBARERME)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

90

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business

MR SR
EEE SR

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
EREER/
AR

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
KRS
BRADL
Direct Indirect
EE iEE
% %

Principal activities

TRER

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals 1 April 2011 RMB100,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China A &£%100,000,0007 HEEm
M ERAEREREERF 201154818
R,/ HEN
Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 100 Research and development on
Co., Ltd.f PRC/Mainland China  AK#1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
M ERE LR EARAFD 20135114258 Emis
RE/ R
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB22,000,000 = 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
Technology Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China - AR#22,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
RAFERABERMBEREMERRY 2014524268 REEmEERE
HE/ B,
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
Pharmaceutical Technology PRC/Mainland China AR#100,0007T biological technology
Co., Ltd. ("Chengdu Hengsheng”) 201543 A4H BERAENEMES
KBERENBERMEREERR A/ HEN

(Trc#pfER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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AAREEEH(E)
MEBAREME)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business

AL R
AASRERME

Issued

G IENY
registered
share capital
BRIEER
R A

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR
BEEEDH
Direct Indirect
EE iE:
% %

Principal activities

TERE

Xizang Linzhi Ziguang pharmaceutical 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of Pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd. (“Linzhi Ziguang")® PRC/Mainland China AR 10,000,0007C HEER
FRNERAEEEREELNF 2014F11 8178
(M5 B/ RE R
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd.? 25 August 2016 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
HERE( D) BHBRRFN PRC/Mainland China  AE%5,000,0007C HEER
20168 H25H
hE /R E R
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading 15 November 2016 RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China A #§30,000,0007T REER
EEEREREHERAR0 20165114158
HEL/ HE R
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals 15 May 2007 RMB10,000,000 = 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China A F#510,000,0007T HEEM
BEmAEFARAFD 2007458158
HE/ HERH,
Deyang Demei Medical Beauty 10 May 2022 RMB3,000,000 100 = Medical beauty services
Hospital Limited Company(iinete 24 PRC/Mainland China ~ AF3,000,0007 BXR%
EIHEEBREEABRARARA R 2022454108
E/ HER
XKR Prosperous Holding PTE. Ltd.i® 6 August 2020 SGD10,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Ik EREEIERAER AR Singapore 10,0005 I TT HEEm
202068 A6H
H
Macao Sinco Limited.® 1 February 2021 MOP25,000 - 100 International trade
RIIERE—ABRLEW Macau JRFIEE25,0007T BRES
202142718
i
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ARREEEH(E)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.

92

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

MEBARERME)

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ G IENY Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR ERE SR BRITEER AR
Rkl aEfRA BEEEDH TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i
% %
Beijing Sinco Biological Medical 9 August 2021 RMB2,000,000 - 100 Market promotion
Technology Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China  AK®2,000,0007T THikE
IEREREAENEERHERRTY  202148A9H
HE/ B
Haikou Sinco Biological Medical 29 August 2021 RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Market promotion
Technology Co., Ltd.i PRC/Mainland China A #10,000,0007T SR
BOEMAENEBENMRBRAR 2021984298
hE/E R
Sheenos Limited 30 November 2021 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
BVI 50,000 7T REER
2021%11A30H
EBRBARES
Sinco (Hainan) Investment 19 July 2022 RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd.( PRC/Mainland China A& #50,000,0007T REER
ERAR(ERE) REERERAR 20225774198
B/ RE R,
Chengdu Hengmeisheng 26 January 2022 RMB50,000,000 - 100 Research and manufacturing of
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China AR 50,000,0007T aesthetic medicine
REMBERENREAR AR 2022517268 AR IEEEEY)
E/ HER
BRENAEEER LR 15 June 2023 RMB1,500,000 = 100 Market promotion
PRC/Mainland China  AR¥1,500,0007C fiikzid
202356 H15H
HE/ B,

(i) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

() ZEMBARREDEARLNE(HRE])ER

under the law of the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC"). aMAIIEEERE -
(i) These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies under (iy ZEWBRARBREREEZIMABREER
PRC law. Al e

(i) The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
the law of the Republic of Singapore.

(iv)  The subsidiary is registered as a one-person limited liability company

under the law of Macau.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.1 mBEEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), which comprise standards and interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"),
and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee Interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") which is same as the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired processes
are considered substantive if they are critical to the ability to
continue producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform the related
processes or they significantly contribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot
be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

% E A P RR IR IR B A 5 s 2 A ([ BIRR
R ELEL ] BRDALERNBERE S ER
BERg((RERgtEAEEg DIENERRE
BUKBREH AR BN BN SR
(TEFR gt R D REBRBZEERE) RE
BARGOINRERERE - FrETRAFER
AEEHEREENERBER AT EFEN
AZEMEMRIZELKAEDIRE - B REEA
EI - REGEMBHRERAARETARE ]
HEARRWNMERERER) 25 MArEEES
HBEREITIT -

mERE
RAMBRRBEARAARBARD 7 REME
RANEHINEBNIBRE

EBEH

EBR—RBERPREE  HPEE-—HEREAR
—EEEMNERE  MEUARBZRELEEN
BB - MBI B H B EE L AL N =R
BEE  SRAGRITHEEBEMENREE - M
HHEEN - BRRARBEBEAMER - HEEEX
AN~ BN EEEEE TN HRTEET A
B AR REEE TSR -

EBWBRAWIBEARR - REKE HrERENK
BERATEFE  MATERASEEENE
B AREHRWIET AEA AFTERENRER
AR B AR B AR M B T3 R R T B 1T RO AR A UK
BB RO R FEAMGTE - WEAERA—RR
ELRAERRER -
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2.1

94

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

For reporting entities applying IFRS Standards:

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the "measurement period" (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that
do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.1 REEE(E)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

L
¥ B E AR BIRESWEE B AR
WRETREEE (1B )FIER -

AHETRENR B EEBEHSIEE SR
HiIBFRMERZENAEESHSEEBMM (K
WeEEBMAR) - B SKEMARERA
BRI S BERSE A NEBSE D AKX

EokEmEnReELSM(IRSESLENA
A SFETRENAREGTRBRZELA
eI ERERTETRENR - SiRlE
HRWBELNREMNS - BOKREMNRSE
A B (IR E A A BALAE R IO A% i S B R A
TTRER - WA R E S BENEREE @ Rk
DEORER BRI EEAHENREE - HRIR
FZEA(FReELBMARN)NSBEERTE
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2.2

96

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

IFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
June 2020 and
December 2021
Amendments to
IFRS 17)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar
Two model Rules
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended
to replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies”
with “material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group's accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. In accordance with the guidance
set out in the amendments, accounting policy information that is
Standardised information, or information that only duplicates or
summarises the requirements of the IFRSs, is considered immaterial
accounting policy information and is no longer disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements so as not to obscure the
material accounting policy information disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

98

Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and IFRS 7
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability3

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHHESEHE

Information

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its contingent consideration payable at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRHE(SE)

Information (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 24 BEASHBEFEESEMEE(E)
Information (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME > BERFBEBEURITE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, YE - R KRB (EREIRERIN TR AR R
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment SHTE REAPREEBAR - W% - = K&E
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment HEWKABRIEBEEREEEZIBHTERAE
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs VERR BE N30 2 A (] B HE BTN ©

of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the WMEDREFREESWE - BEREEEBHK
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual AREMFAIMFERFHAMEE EFIREET
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of & oW WERREEB NG E A EE M
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows: T
Useful lives A {2 A A
Buildings 34-40 years BF 34F40F
Machinery 10 years Mol 104
Office equipment 3-5 years N 3E5F
Motor vehicles 4-5 years pat 4Z55F
Leasehold improvements 3-5 years or over the remaining MEEE 3ESF S FIERAIR
term, whichever is shorter (LBEERE)
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31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of investment properties to their residual value over their
estimated useful life of 46 years.

Any gain or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

Y%~ BERREBURITE (8)

EETEEEEYE  BENMREBER - KA
DR EREIIRN TR E - KAREEZE
RPEHNERERKN A RAABEFNEERE
MR - ERTENTRLAEBEERDERE
HEENME - MERREER -

REME
REMER/FEERDESRAR, S EREE
M FEFA A S A B P o SR AR S S PET TR i
FHFERN AR EBBRET HENBTHEE - %%
MENHREA(BREZHRA)GE - TERE
BORRIREY R AT A ERFH46FRMIRE
WER A EERIGEEH

BEWFRMASEHERTEE RS EER
RASHEFENERAER -

2023 3R ERIAESERAR AR 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3& BIi& R &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately form goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected form use or disposal. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

e  theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally — generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy

Information (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises and warehouse
Leasehold land 50 years

2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The Group elected to present right-of-use assets separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The Group elected to present the lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through Profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other income and gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3& BIi& R &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.
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24 EXEBREMBE(E)

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy

Information (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach (Continued)

@)

112

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach (Continued)

@)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy

Information (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach (Continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group estimates ECL for certain trade
receivables collectively taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables is considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics which formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group'’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, bank borrowings and contingent
consideration at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade and bills payables and other payables and accruals
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FV/TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3& BIi& R &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods with the pharmaceuticals inspection report.

Service income

Revenue from service is recognised at the point in time upon
completion of service since the duration of the service provided is
normally within one day.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income from distribution services is recognised when services
are completed at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income (Continued)

The Group is considered as an agent for its contracts with customers
relating to the sales of two specific types of human albumin solution
as the Group did not obtain the control of the products before
passing on to customers taking into consideration indicators such
as the Group is not primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise
and not exposed to inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognizes a fee revenue in the
amount it expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain employed in the Group
and to motivate them to strive for the further development and
expansion of the Group. Employees (including the Directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

When the share options are lapsed after vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognized in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEESRBE(E)

Information (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in Singapore are members of
the central provident fund board in Singapore operated by the
Government of Singapore. Payments to the central provident fund
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to up to HK$1,500 per month
since 1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policy 2.4 EASHBEERBEE)

Information (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss is translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3& BIi& R &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

Revenue recognition

To determine the timing of revenue recognition, the Group applies
judgements in determining the point in time at which customers
obtain control of the promised pharmaceuticals and the Group
satisfies the performance obligations. Depending on the nature
and terms of the agreements, the Group may recognise revenue
when pharmaceuticals are received by customers with the respective
pharmaceuticals inspection report or the services are transferred.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”), Singapore corporate income
tax (“SG CIT”) and Hong Kong corporate income tax (“HK CIT")

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to PRC CIT, the operating subsidiary in Singapore is subject to SG
CIT and the operating subsidiary in Hong Kong is subject to Hong
Kong CIT. Objective estimates based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required in determining
the provision for PRC CIT, SG CIT and HK CIT to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact the income tax
expense and tax provision in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of tax payable as at 31 December 2023
was RMB26,444,000 (2022: RMB5,437,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories as at
31 December 2023 was RMB108,026,000 (2022: RMB88,148,000)
and the impairment provision for inventories for the year ended 31
December 2023 was nil (2022: nil).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2023 was
RMB3,403,000 (2022: RMB3,001,000). Further details are given in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

1 26 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

ERETHER A (E)

st TP EERZ(E)

FE A ZHFE
FEREHFER—REKBREPOMETEER
TR ERREEMBGRA - ZEHARERE
AT RIEE M E RS EMARTAR - REH
HHIR - BRESEHTEZEME  R2023F
12A318 ' FERMKRAEAAR108,026,000
g0 (20224 + AR#88,148,0007t) * MEE
2023F12A3MBLEFE  FERERERS
(2022F : &) -

BEFIREE

IRAE AT RE RS R 3R I R R RR B F K S A R A 2R
FRIBFTEIRRES - WR A B R R R AR AT A
LURSE AT DR E R =5 R A BB RITE IS - BlE
FATA IR TR 2R A AR IESEERE
ERIEEE - RIERIBEEEMR2023F12A31H
R BREE A AR % 3,403,000 (20224 « AR
#3,001,0007T) © #E—FRFBEERAGRE T #RE
FFEETS o

A ERE
AEERSHERRTEAEIFCREERD
REMREDR - FHAERNIFSREENNA
PR BN REE R e R B EETTRE R
BREFRSELSBUNRERDE @RS
BAIAHERLEXNAREERBENRSE)
K BIFERE © st E A TERHERAR - 1%
AERUBERFRSHANORINHEERZM
BREIBRAETHERRLEEENEEK
G - RETEEREER - BEEAMGTAY
BEIRSELBEMNARIRSRE - WEEE
ENMAXRUFEZERSRENIRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, which is
the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit (or a
group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision
of discount rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB66,536,000 (2022: RMB66,536,000) (net of accumulated
impairment loss of nil (2022: nil)). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value measurement of contingent consideration payable
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
estimations relating to these factors could affect the reported fair
value of the contingent consideration payable. Further details are
given in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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128

Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. Wak&EoPER
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business AETEIER  AEBMERETRBEME SR

units based on the nature of the services and products sold or
provided, the Group has three (2022: three) reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) the sale of imported pharmaceutical products segment;

(b) the research and manufacturing of aesthetic medicine
segment; and

(¢)  the medical beauty services segment.

In the prior year, the Group’s research and development of

HORBREREEHERK  NEEENUT =
(2022@ —1.)T¥|§¢Z«<M/'\_L 5

() EOBERFEDE

() BBXBEMARRELENT K

(0 BERBOAL-

E—FE - AEERES AR AEIERE GHE

the polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler for injection was FEREERIEF) - WER E—FE T FFRHRS
progressing smoothly and had started trial production for the AEDVEITIIE - Bt - Ho]EEEAEEEY

research purpose in the second half of the prior year. As a result
it was separately managed as the research and manufacturing of
aesthetic medicine segment as a separate business unit and was
identified as a separate reportable and operating segment of the
Group in the prior year. In addition, the Group acquired Deyang
Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company (f2f51@k &%
ANEfR AR A7) ("Demei Company”), a medical beauty services
provider in prior year (as further detailed in note 24), which was
managed as a separate business unit and as a result, the medical
beauty services segment was also identified as a separate reportable
and operating segment of the Group in the prior year.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax.

R MEEEDEMEAB Y EHETERE - Wk
—F R AR EENB Y ATRELE ST o 1
Oh 0 AEER E—FEREESEEREEAE
RARAR([EEAR ] (—REBERBIEMS
(FERME 24V 1EBB Y £KBETEE - Bt
BERB IR E—FEHR AR EERNTEL

IIREZE DR

DERBIZAIRE D BR T, EEEL TS - B
HEPERHATNE N T E o LPHERBATG

The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the HEtERAREERT IS —3 - HEMKAR
Group's profit before tax except that other income and gains, other s - Y REsE - FHERBY AR

expenses and losses, finance costs not related to lease and charges
attributable to issue of letters of credit and corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits, bank

balances and cash and corporate and other unallocated assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.
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31 December 2023 202312 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information

(Continued)

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities,
tax payable and corporate and other unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

The following tables present revenue and profit (loss) information for
the Group’s operating segments for the years ended 31 December

2023 and 31 December 2022.

Year ended 31 December 2023

4, WBEREELIER(E)
HANMRITIEE - EERIEEE - ENFIEN R

ENEMARD EEE{TB{Q‘HE”E@ Rtz EaE
TetAnEaRE

TREFEZE2023412 A31H K%2022412 A31
I FEAEBEE DB EF (BB E
#e

HZE2023F12A31BLEE

Sale Research and
of imported  manufacturing Medical
pharmaceutical of aesthetic beauty
Segments products medicine services Total
BxEy
EO#EREE MEREE BXRi% @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T ARBTR ARBTR

Segment revenue 2
Sales to external customers HETIMNBEP 2,514,137 - 25,926 2,540,063
Segment results AEEE 116,779 (6,676) 8,882 118,985
Recondiliation: R -
Corporate and other rEREMRDERE

unallocated expenses (10,604)
Other income and gains H A R as 14,625
Other expenses and losses Hitf% REE (13,770)
Finance costs (other than interest ~ BIBAA(FRE B EFI B

on lease liabilities and finance R EREEG

charges attributable to issue of BT B RSN

letters of credit) (9,355)
Profit before tax Bt AR F 99,881
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. WWHERE&EHIBER(E)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE2022512A31BLFE
Sale Research and
of imported  manufacturing Medical
pharmaceutical of aesthetic beauty
products medicine services
BREY)
i ME WS BERS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Segment revenue panzl 6
Sales to external customers HE TINEER 2,259,313 - 12,192 2,271,505
Segment results PEHEE 113,186 (14,106) 3,070 102,150
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and other rEREMADERS
unallocated expenses (8,233)
Other income and gains H AU A Rz 25,240
Other expenses HmFEE (6,485)

Finance costs (other than interest B A(FHEBEFI S
on lease liabilities and finance RIS (BB RENL
charges attributable to issue B & AR

of letters of credit) (13,380)
Profit before tax BE BRI 99,292
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31 December 2023 202312 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4.

(Continued)

The following table presents information of assets and liabilities of
the Group's operating segments as at 31 December 2023 and 31

December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023

R PSRRI

WKk EETHER(E)

TRE57M2023F12 4318 &2022F12831H

AEEREDHNEERBEER -

7A2023%F12H31H

Sale Research and
of imported  manufacturing Medical
pharmaceutical of aesthetic beauty
Segments products medicine services Total
Bxay

ENERHE MEREE BEmR% #@st

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®T AR®T T AR®ET

Segment assets IWEE 1,045,836 97,101 85,600 1,228,537

Reconciliation: R

Corporate and other rEREMADEERE

unallocated assets 790

Deferred tax assets EARIBEE 3,403

Bank balances and cash FIEBREES 437,922

Pledged deposits BHEAER 220,026

Total assets BEE 1,890,678

Segment liabilities SHEE 958,563 8,377 25,629 992,569

Reconciliation: R -

Corporate and other rEREMADEERE

unallocated liabilities 70

Bank borrowings RITER 241,743

Tax payable fERTIR 26,444

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR 1,800

Total liabilities FEY=lr 1,262,626

2003 5 memmgngaRas 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4.

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022

R PSRRI

Wk EETHER(E)

®2022612H31H

Sale Research and
of imported  manufacturing Medical
pharmaceutical of aesthetic beauty
products medicine services
BREY)
O ZEmEE WS BEER%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Segment assets PBEE 833,202 51,381 99,030 983,613
Reconciliation: HE -
Corporate and other rEREMADEEE
unallocated assets 723
Deferred tax assets RERIBAE 3,001
Bank balances and cash RITHESR LIRS 329,144
Pledged deposits [REE TGRS 107,852
Total assets BEE 1,424,333
Segment liabilities SHEE 596,059 5,753 29,232 631,044
Recondiliation: 8k -
Corporate and other TrEREMKHEER
unallocated liabilities 62
Bank borrowings RITIER 181,728
Tax payable FERFEIE 5,437
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 2,250
Total liabilities “EE 820,521
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WKk EETHER(E)

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4.

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B £2023F12A31H L FE

Sale Research and

of imported manufacturing Medical
pharmaceutical of aesthetic beauty
products medicine services Total
BXEY
ENEMHE WREREE BERK At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARBT T ARET T
Amounts included in the FFADBBEER
measure of segment profit or DEEENEE
loss or segment assets:
Capital expenditure* NG 32,515 34,270 704 67,489
Depreciation and amortisation  #7% & # 10,331 2,187 3,801 16,319
Provision for impairment loss B 5 W IE R E
on trade receivables EiasiE 4,245 - - 4,245
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGRNE 102 295 56 453
Finance charges attributable to B~ (=& EEEE A
issue of letters of credit 4,626 - - 4,626
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE2022F12A31HLEE

Sale Research and

of imported  manufacturing
pharmaceutical of aesthetic
products medicine

I hgsE
RMB'000
ARET T

Medical
beauty
services

B X
RMB'000

AR®ET T

#EOBERHE
RMB’000
ARETTT

Total

st
RMB'000
ABBFT

Amounts included in the FTADEIERETEY

measure of segment profit or DEEEMNEE

loss or segment assets:
Capital expenditure* NG 3,336 59,978 22,741 86,055
Depreciation and amortisation  #7E K #4H 6,941 1,641 2,774 11,356
Provision for impairment loss 2 5 RYIERE

on trade receivables EiakiE 6,205 = = 6,205
Reversal of impairment loss STAFER IR  EfbEU

on financial assets included FEREMEER

in prepayments, other SREEREBBER

receivables and other assets (279) - - (279)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGNE 17 374 42 433
Finance charges attributable to B {E BB % E

issue of letters of credit 4,520 - = 4,520

& Capital expenditure consists of additions to right-of-use assets, other & EARAYBREABFREEE  HtEFEEN

intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information
(Continued)
An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

() Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from contracts
with customers
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Segments
P

Types of goods or services EmRSREER
Sale of imported pharmaceutical RE—REEERN
products, at a point in time BEMIHE
Medical beauty services, RE—FHEE
at a point in time EXR%

Total revenue from contracts with KEREAHH
customers WS B R

4. WEREEIBER(E)
WA -

REFFEHNNKE
()  KEEPESIK a0z BT

HZE2023F12831BLFE
Sale of

imported Medical
pharmaceutical beauty

products services Total
EOEMHFE xR st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

2,514,137 - 2,514,137
= 25,926 25,926
2,514,137 25,926 2,540,063
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. WHBEEATER ()

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEFEHNMNWE(E)

(i)  Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from contracts ()  KEFEFEAHIMa sy EF A (E)
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE2022F12A31HLFE

Segments

-]

Sale of

imported Medical

pharmaceutical beauty
products services Total
HEOERHE BER% et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKET T ARBETT ARKETT

Types of goods or services Emoi RS ER
Sale of imported pharmaceutical RE—SE2END

products, at a point in time LS 2,259,313 - 2,259,313
Medical beauty services, RE R

at a point in time BERD - 12,192 12,192
Total revenue from contracts with RABFPAHN

customers asiaza 2,259,313 12,192 2,271,505

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT

Types of pharmaceutical products E-fb ki)
Human albumin solution AMAZEAESR 2,507,058 2,257,253
Antibiotics (Axetine and Medocef) MAEZ(LAIMRREEBEL) 7,079 2,060
Total revenue from contracts with customers REBFPE NN =1B5E 2,514,137 2,259,313

Geographical markets

HETS

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group
during each of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
was attributable to customers located in Mainland China, the
place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating entities.
Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets are all
located in Mainland China.

REBREE2023F 202261243181k
BEFEEMEREBRFPAHNMNKZHEIREN
RABERM(REEFBLBEEE M)
WEF - AEEBRNBHIERBEEHTN
AR B AL o
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)  Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)
Timing of revenue recognition
All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group
during each of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
was recognised when control of the goods and services were
transferred on a point in time basis.

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in

4, REREED

=ER ()

REATFEHNWRE(E)

(@)

RIERIFFAGDAEN

KEEF G Rz 9 as BV (48

T 25 195

HZE2023F N2022F 12 A31HILFEES
FAEEFMARETEFANNKERE
b M AR TS 122 il 48 2 A RS R BERERR o

TRETFTABSHONENABEELR
SHARER AR E’J%%ﬁ

2023
RMB’000

2022
RMB'000
ARBTT

AR®TR

contract liabilities at the beginning of the B R
reporting period:
Medical beauty services %HE?}’% 1,941 -
Sale of imported pharmaceutical products H#miseE 56,804 11,698
58,745 11,698
Information about major customers FTEEEER
Revenue from each of the major customer, which amounted to KERTITEEZR(54IZE10% 3 A Faglk

10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

EFEA

Customer A

wEFNAT

(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of imported pharmaceutical products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
pharmaceuticals and payment is generally due within 90 to 180
days (2022: 90 to 180 days) from delivery, except for certain
customers who make payments in advance prior to delivery of
the pharmaceuticals.

Medical beauty services

Revenue from medical beauty service is recognised at the point
in time upon completion of service since the duration of the
service provided is normally within one day.
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5.

6.

Other Income and Gains

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

Bank interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 7)

Government grants*

Net rental income from investment property
(notes 7, 12, 13)

Service income

Exchange gains, net

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Others

H At WA R ez
AMEMRA RO T -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARETIT
RITHEA 5,961 1,301
REZRAFEF BTN
CREENFIBMA A ZE7) 6 1,121
AT HEEn* 1,319 42
BEMENHEEWAFE
(Htsz7 12+ 13) 390 624
FRAS U A 6,889 6,168
b 5 Uk a5 R 5 - 15,980
HEWE - BE kR EkE 36 -
Hit 24 4
14,625 25,240

* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the

government grants.

Finance Costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank and other borrowings

Interest on lease liabilities (note 73)
Finance charges attributable to issue of
letters of credit

RITREAETA B
MEREMNE (HZ13)
R ERERENHER

* WEEEBSHENREITIRF SR SRAEE -

B3 AR A
B BRARN DT
2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKETIT
9,355 13,380
453 433
4,626 4,520
14,434 18,333
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7. Profit Before Tax 7.

The Group's profit before tax was arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBE A A
AEBMBHATHFE MR, (GLA) TAES -

2023 2022
RMB’000

ARBTT

RMB'000
AR®T T

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 2,207,433 1,962,422
Cost of services provided B IR AR A AR 9,350 3,215
Depreciation of property, M - B R

plant and equipment e 1 7,703 5,608
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREEERE 13 5,433 3,569
Depreciation of investment property REMERE 12 180 180
Amortisation of other intangible assets HttEmEE#H

(included in administrative expenses) (Gt ATTERS) 14 3,003 1,999
Research and development expenses MEBERGIATTHRRAR)

(included in administrative expenses) 8,291 11,270
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss AT B EERRE

recognised on: EEEE (BE) -

Trade receivables B S ENIA 17 4,245 6,205

Financial assets included in prepayments, FTAFERFUA « A

other receivables and other assets JEUCEIE L H B
MEemEE 18 = (279)

Short-term lease payments RHEEE R 13 915 838
Auditors’ remuneration 2t Gkl 2,300 2,300
Employee benefit expense REBAAZ

(including directors’ remuneration (B IEMIESATHE,

as set out in note 8): EEH) -
Wages and salaries TERHS 46,573 22,665
Welfare and other benefits B R E Az 1,368 3,165
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIMER

— Defined contribution fund —EREHRES 6,313 4,154
Housing fund FEAES

— Defined contribution fund —ERHtFES 543 726
Total employee benefit expense EERAFS B 54,797 30,710
Exchange losses/(gains), net [E X 518, /(e ) 35 8,641 (15,980)
Interest income from financial assets at BN ER ABEN

fair value through profit or loss SREENSHA (6) (1,121)
Net rental income from investment property & )3/ & U A F58E (390) (624)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R RKIzE
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8. EERTETBRAEFMUREZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees =aHES
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEBFAHCHES ML - TEABENSE
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the 383(1)@) * (b) * O EOIEERAF (HEEEFZ
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies BE)ROE2HHE  FRNEBENTBITHA
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BT ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR ARETIT
Fees we 1,200 760
Other emoluments: H< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDER 9,812 5,558
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEEIER
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 331 213
11,343 6,531
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FEREMNBYIERTESHNESOT

the year were as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTIT
Mr. Liu Wenfang B EE 300 190
Mr. Wang Qing ARTE 300 190
Mr. Lau Ying Kit B E 300 190
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BEREE 300 190
1,200 760

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent F B FE N T B IE 1T E B A E b B

non-executive directors during the year. % o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

EERIETRASHFMARE SR
SEHES(E)
(b) HITEERFETHAE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8.
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive officer

140

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
211 Bk
RENEF e HE- e #cr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥ETR ARETR
2023 20234
Executive directors WITEE
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin (note a) —EEWEE(H ) 6,978 = 121 7,099
—Mr. Lei Shifeng (note ¢) — Bt & (fztc) 980 - 105 1,085
Co-chief executive officer BT,
—Mr. Jin Min (note b) — & EN D)
1,854 - 105 1,959
9,812 - 331 10,143
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
£ = : EBke
REYVIEF Hwe STl FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTTT ARETT ARETT
2022 20226
Executive director WITES
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin (note a) — B A (Hita) 3,998 - 114 4,112
Co-chief executive officer BT,
—Mr. Jin Min (note b) —SBRE (WD)
1,560 - 99 1,659
5,558 - 213 5,771
Notes: et -
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Huang Xiangbin is (@) HEZE2022F12A31HILFE » Skt

also the co-chief executive officer of the Company. On 29 March
2023, Mr. Huang was resigned as the co-chief executive officer
of the Company.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Jin Min was the co-
chief executive officer of the Company. On 29 March 2023,
Mr. Jin Min was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company.

(c)  For the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Lei Shifeng was
appointed as the executive director of the Company.

(d)  On 26 March 2024, Mr. Huang Zhijian was appointed as the
executive director of the Company.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

INARR B EITHREE - 1R2023F3A
298 - EBAABHIARRBEITHRAE -

(b) EHZE2022F12A31HIFE  €8EkE
BN B EITIREE - R2023F3 829
B @HEERSTEARRITEREE -

(0 EHZE2023F12A318ILFE - Eittigk4E
BEZAAARBHRNITES -

(d) H20249F3F268  EERILLEEZTAE
ARARMITES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

31 December 2023 202312 H31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8.
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive officer
(Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.
(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year ended 31
December 2023 included two directors and one co-chief
executive officer (2022: one director and one co-chief executive
officer), details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration during the year of the remaining
two (2022: three) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor a chief executive officer of the Company are as
follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

& ERREYEMN
BINE B

BA SRR PTRE

EERFTETHRAEBFMURTEER
SEES(E)
(b) BITEERFETHAE(E)

FABBESEHELRATRETFHHA
ke

EXFRTRATEEMERREEIERDA
RAKEEHORBMEDL - EXHARE
VIATEEMERRELERARAES
REMRBEMEDL -

TEReHFEE
HZE2023F12A31BILFE  AE&e
T REPEMBESTR BB ETRE
#H(2022F : —REER—BHMEITH
BE)  HFBFBRN L - EHRME
(2022 : =R)WIEARRESHITIAE
HNEEHFREENFRNEBFBHOT

(0

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
2,615 1,537

210 245

2,825 1,782

The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

BN T T SBEMIFE R RIFTTHAE
RRHFEENABMT

2023 2022

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

£2%1,000,0007% 7T
1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T

= 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

Income Tax Expense

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI. The assessable profits of the Group derived from Hong
Kong are subject to a two-tiered profit tax rate regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits are taxed
at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

Except for Demei Company, the provision for PRC CIT is based on
the respective PRC CIT rates applicable to the subsidiaries located
in Mainland China as determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of Mainland China for the year. All
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC were subject to PRC CIT at a rate
of 25% during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

According to the Circular on Issues Concerning Tax Policies for
In-depth Implementation of Western Development Strategies ([
FORANE i 78 S0 KA 2 B S B R B URBUCR M B8V M) ), Demei
Company being a subsidiary located in Sichuan Province and
engaged in the encouraged business is entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 and until 31 December 2030.

Taxation in Singapore is calculated at the tax rate of 17% for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

FriEBipx
BEHSHESREBHERRESHHRRRER -
NEBEDBSMNHERS R ABHERESHE
RIFTISHE » ARERE BB R RN /AEM
WHIFN ST R G - R & F &) & 2,000,000
7 70(20224F : 2,000,000/ 7T ) $#28.25% (2022
F 1 8.25% ) IBI R - HeRERB A Rz
16.5% (20224 : 16.5% )T REFS -

BREEQEIN  RRMEMSHEBEIREFA
P B i G BAATIS AR Bl SOA R AT € 9 B3 A
A HR B P 3 B B R B A AR B EE TS R R AT
12 o HIE2023F K202 12A31B IEEE » B
FEIFME AT BB A R BRT B EATSHR
R)5% T o

IR IECRARNR A B e 7 5B K 7 85 B R G BA R IR R
FEBHBMN)  BEQRAMADEIIE &M
BARIRKREEHEEESR  HREE2023F K
202212 A31H IEFEREZE2030F12A31H
BHEZZIS%NCEMSHERRE -

HZE2023F R2022F12 A3 B ILEE - ik
FRIBIR17 %M R E -

BB I SERBAHWT :

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
Current — Hong Kong BIER—&E
Charge for the year FARX = 9,032
Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE (103) _
Current — Mainland China BIER — R B At
Charge for the year FAF 46,013 19,469
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETTE 10,690 =
Current — Singapore BER — 37 hn4%
Charge for the year FARX 1,781 3,770
Deferred tax credit (note 15) BRI IER L (H7E15) (852) (2,4417)
Total tax charge for the year FABRIEFR X258 57,529 29,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R RKIzE

31 December 2023 202312 H31H

9. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the applicable tax rates for companies within the Group to the
income tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

9. PSR (&)
128 PR A SRR T2 B MO B St B R B A
FE A TS B R BB AT H AT 18R
PASTEVLIAR TS ¢

2023 2022
RMB’000

ARETT

RMB’000
AR¥T T

Profit before tax PR AR ) 99,881 99,292
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates REBEEREENTIE
- PRC subsidiaries at 25% — BB RE25% 5 E 22,569 4,847
~ PRC subsidiaries at 15% — BB AR 15% & 1,536 769
- Hong Kong subsidiary at 8.25% —BAMBARIE8.25%:TE = 165
- Hong Kong subsidiary at 16.5% —BAMBARIZ16.5%TE = 8,703
— the Singapore subsidiary at 17% —ETINE B AR 7%t E 2,180 3,770
Differences previously not recognised BAERERNESE - (1,108)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose (Note a) A B (Hata) 13,031 14,574
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences RIEZRR IR E R E5EH
not recognised Db 7 (345) (351
Effect of super deduction for research and TSR A INETH0BRAY
development cost (Note b) 2 (H5tb) = (4,463)
Income not subject for tax purpose BARBHA (952) (2,291)
Tax losses not recognised KRR IR 8,923 5,215
Underprovision in prior years BAFEREBETRE 10,587 =
57,529 29,830
Notes: Wit -
(@) Expenses not deductible for tax purpose for the years ended 31 (@) EZE2023F12A318K%2022F12A31HILLFE

T AMHRREY T EBETRAX - BAFER
ABENERARATEZESLEINRRMEES
MESZRARRRBEXERZNER - ZEH

December 2023 and 31 December 2022 mainly consisted of
administrative expenses, change in fair value on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, and foreign exchange differences

incurred by offshore companies and fees for not obtaining formal ZIEEIA AR
invoices. These expenses are not expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.
(b)  Cai Shui [2018] No. 99 “Notice on Increasing the Pre-tax Deduction (b)  BAFE[2018]99%% Mt = A ST M 3 & A B A N

Ratio of Research and Development Expenses” (“the Notice”) was
released in August 2018. According to the Notice, a PRC subsidiary oo WREZGEA - PENBARERFEN F—
is entitled to an additional tax deduction on eligible research and FEEANAIGENIFE T A EINTIER
development expenses incurred in the prior year. o

FHHNER L PIEv BN | (TRBA )R 20185F8 A %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

10. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners of 10. XA FEE AELBREF

the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 of RMB42,352,000 (2022: RMB69,462,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,032,890,585
(2022:2,031,575,517) in issue during the year.

No adjustment is made in arriving of diluted earnings per share as
there was no potential ordinary shares outstanding in the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: the outstanding share options were anti-
dilutive).

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

ERARRFEENEHZE2023F12A3181LF
EARRNEHEAR ARG ARA42,352,0007T
(20224 : AR#69,462,0007T) LA K £ A 2 3
1T RS ANRE 9 22,032,890,5850% (20224F
2,031,575,517/%) 51 & -

RN EE2023F12 531 B IEFE I EIE 1T
B @A Nt EEREE AR R &
PR (20226  (MARTTEERE R G RS
JE) o

AHEEBRER RN EERN

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Earnings ek
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

ZYNI 2PNyl

42,352 69,462

Number of shares

RAEE

Shares <)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic

and diluted earnings per share calculations

IntEF 1988

2023

ARt EEREAREE
ENNFEASEITEBR

2,032,890,585 2,031,575,517

2,032,890,585 2,031,575,517
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31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

11. Y% BMERRE

11. Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold
improvements
and office Motor  Construction in
Buildings Machinery equipment vehicles progress Total
HEXER
B B N | e EEIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANRETT ARETT ANRETT ANRETT ANRETT
Cost; A
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 H021%12A31B k200251518 197313 1,509 11,082 18,549 3349 261,948
Acquistion of subsidiaries (note 24) YBEWBAR Wt - 3459 - - - 3459
Additions AE - 589 17 1% 51,089 52,691
Disposals ihE - - (106) (1958) - (2064
At 31 December 2022 #20225128318 197,313 5,557 11,193 17,387 84,584 316,034
At 31 Decernber 2022and 1 January 203 20225124318 RABE1A1B 197313 5,557 11,193 17,387 84,584 316,034
Transfer fE - - 2,610 - (2,610) -
Additions AE - 703 963 2,556 25328 29,550
Disposals it (83) - (1,09 (228) - (1763
At 31 December 2023 #2023%128318 196,870 6,260 13,674 19715 107,302 343,821
Accumulated depreciation: 2itiE:
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021E12A318 k202261518 26417 534 9,535 17,595 - 54,081
Provided for the year (note 7) ENBEMET) 3,700 1,269 532 107 = 5,608
Disposals e - - (100) (1,664) - (1,764)
At 31 December 2022 #2022%128318 30117 1,803 9,967 16,038 - 57,925
At 31 Decernber 2022and 1 January 203 0228128318 RABE1A1R 30,117 1803 9,967 16,038 - 57,925
Provided for the year (note 7) EnERI) 5,239 1,085 643 736 = 7703
Disposals hE (200) = (491) (199) = (890)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%128318 35,156 2,888 10,119 16,575 - 64,738
Net carrying amount; RERE:
At 31 December 2022 #20224128318 167,19 3,754 1206 1349 84,584 258,109
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A318 161,714 3312 3,555 3,140 107,302 279,083

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's certain buildings with a net
carrying amount of RMB68,489,000 (2022: RMB70,999,000) were
pledged to one bank (2022: one bank) to secure the Group's bank

borrowings (note 23 (a)).

M2023F12A831H » AEEREFEAARE
68,489,0007T (20224 : AR #70,999,0007T)
METEFERA T —ERT(2022F : —HER
1) tERAREERITIERAER(FIFE23@))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

11. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 1. ¥ BERREE)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s construction in progress 2023128310 - NEERER B & ER M
for the purpose of office for daily operation amounted to NEMER TR A ARKA7,630,0007T (2022
RMB47,630,000 (2022: RMB39,132,000) and manufacturing plant F : AR%39,132,0007T) A K F1EBE = &)
for research and manufacturing of aesthetic medicine amounted to MERRENETERENEERIREAARE
RMB48,754,000 (2022: RMB37,650,000). 48,754,0007T(20224F : AR#¥37,650,0007T) °
12. Investment Property 12. REYE
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January M AB1AMEEE 6,319 6,499
Depreciation provided for the year (note 7) FANBEHRITE (M727) (180) (180)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31BREREE 6,139 6,319
Notes: et -
(@) Asat 31 December 2023, the fair value of the investment property was (@)  M2023F12A310 - WEVMENAFEGTNA
estimated to be approximately RMB6,730,000 (2022: RMB8,292,000). AR 86,730,000 (20224 - AR #:8,292,000
The valuation was performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal TT) o fhEBBY BEA BRMEEMEATEH
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer (2022: The HAERARMEIT(2022F - ZAEHBLEES
valuation was performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal BREEMD TS ABRARM®IT - WEE
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer. There is no REH) - JMEEITER) o SMNBEERMAEELER|
significant change and no revaluation has been carried out). Selection BREMSHE B8 BUMREGHRFEER
criteria of the external valuer include market knowledge, reputation, A o ZARE IR E AR AR YA A8 A B K
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The & T LR TISHE S R A o (2nE A )
valuation was estimated using discounted cash flow projections based AR @R ETAEITHE - REVENL
on reliable estimates of future rental income or market rents for similar FEAEERFTES TERNTAIBREASIR
properties in the same location and condition, where appropriate. The (B=8) -

fair value measurement hierarchy of the investment property requires
certain significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

(b)  The Group’s investment property is situated in Mainland China and (b) AEBERIREWELAFRBEIAHILREHR AL
held under medium lease terms. A -

(© As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the investment (© F2023F12A318BK2022%12A318 » £EW
property was leased to a third party under operating lease. FREEHELRHE T —RE=H -

(d) As at 31 December 2023, the Group's investment property with a net (d) F2023F12A318 @ AEBEREZFEAARE
carrying amount of RMB6,139,000 (2022: RMB6,319,000) was pledged 6,139,0007T (20224 : ARM6,319,0007T) K%
to obtain bank facilities of RMB240,000,000 (2022: RMB180,000,000) BYECERAERRE TASENRITHEAR
granted to the Group. #240,000,0007T (20224 : AR %180,000,000

TT) °
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31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

13. Leases 13. &

The Group as a lessee

The Group has entered into lease contracts for office premises and
a warehouse used in its operations. The Group entered into certain
lease contracts for office premises for lease terms between 1 and
5 years. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land with land use right periods of 50 years. Payments were
made yearly upfront in respect of the leases of certain leased office
premises with lease periods of five years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of the leases after the payments. For
other leases, payments were made monthly, quarterly and semi-
annually. Leases of office premises have lease terms between 1 and
5 years. The lease of a warehouse has lease terms within 5 years.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2022 7K2022F1A1H
Addition NE
Depreciation charge (note 7) mERZ(K:77)

As at 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2023

Addition*

Depreciation charge (note 7)

2022912 A31H
}2023F1 818

INE*

WERZ(M:t7)

As at 31 December 2023 2023 12H31H

AEBEREBA
AEBEEREEMARAEWEREEVEE
A8 REERPAETMETVETHEA1Z
SEMAEAY - BN —IRENKUESAES
SOE T RENRE i - SEARESRA
AEMETHRRASYEREENTIE - 53
BIRBEHERRB A HEAEERIE - i
ERIBA FERBEFIN - RAEMENRE
WAHEH A1 E5F - BERENHEEASFIANA -
—MME - ARENMFAAEE SN TEER
HHEMELE -

(@) (EFELE
AEENFEREEENFRANKAERE
g

Office

Leasehold premises and
land a warehouse Total

WAZEYE
HELT# kEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFIT ARBTFT
48,050 344 48,394
- 12,905 12,905
(982) (2,587) (3,569)
47,068 10,662 57,730
19,880 2,948 22,828
(1,346) (4,087) (5,433)
65,602 9,523 75,125

The Group’s leasehold land included in right-of-use assets is
situated in Mainland China and held under long lease terms.

* Amounts include right-of-use assets resulting from new leases

entered and payment for leasehold land.

AEBFAEREEENHEE L ARG
M RE R IR E R A -

*  ARASRERIVHHEEELNEREE
ERBE R -
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31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

13. Leases (Continued) 13. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBHEREBA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEBBENFANEREBERZESHNT :

during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1AREREE 10,684 384
New leases HE 2,948 12,905
Accretion of interest recognised during F RN E3E 0
the year (note 6) (Miite) 453 433
Payments A (4,423) (3,045)
Exchange realignment ME N R (4) 7
Carrying amount at 31 December M2 A31BRIREE 9,658 10,684
Analysed into: baxiv= R
Current portion mENER 3,833 2,998
Non-current portion ERBE D 5,825 7,686
9,658 10,684
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 35 HEBENEIABE DTG E B B WM
to the consolidated financial statements. FE35HEE -
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31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

13. HE(E)
AEBEEREBAE)

13. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 H“EZTEREEHENSTELOT :
are as follows:

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEBENR(Hit6) 453 433
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 7) i R#EAEFER S (H1:27) 5,433 3,569

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in BRI EIFEMNFX

administrative expenses) (note 7) (Bt ATTER®) (H75E7) 915 838
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FEmTERNEE 6,801 4,840
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 32(c) to (d MEBRSRH@BREATBHREN T
the consolidated financial statements. 32(HEE -
The Group as a lessor AEBERHEA

The Group leases its investment property consisting of one
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the lease generally require the tenant
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. The net rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB390,000
(2022: RMB624,000) (note 5).

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenant are as follows:

AEERBECEHETHREHLRENE - AL
RHRBE A —IEREYE - MEHR—REX
HEIMMRES WA TREBEEENTR TR
BHE - FA AEERRBESUWAFEAR
#390,0007T(20224F : AR¥624,0007T) (FisE
5)°

Hézoz3¢12ﬁ31 B AEBRZEEBEHTH
HH SRS TR RAR RN RMIRAENK
U

Within one year —FR
—FRERER

After one year but within two years

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
149 511

- 149

149 660
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

14. Other Intangible Assets 14. B EE

Non-compete Development Computer
agreement expenditure License Software

e BREBA MR REAERG

(note a) (note b)
(Hita) (Hiztb)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT ARETE ARETE

Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 7202241 A1BHBREE - - - - -

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 24) YiEEM B A B (Hizt24) 17,000 - - - 17,000
Amortisation i)
Charged for the year (note 7) ENRZ(Wi27) (1,999) - - - (1,999)
Carrying amount at M2022F128318 %
31 December 2022 and 2023F1A18H
1 January 2023 IREE 15,001 - - - 15,001
Addition NE - 13,078 2,000 33 15,111
Amortisation B
Charged for the year (note 7) FRRZ (A7) (2,999) - - @ (3,003)
Carrying amount at #®2023F12 310K
31 December 2023 REE 12,002 13,078 2,000 29 27,109
The above other intangible assets other than development BRAME R F ARG S RSN - Bt E
expenditure and license which have finite useful lives, are amortised BT & R LA T AR B AR A 8

on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Non-compete agreement 5.67 years EFEF 5.674F

Computer software 7 years ETE M 75

Notes: Hit -

(@) Non-compete agreement is the right appraised from the acquisition (@) FEFhEAWBEEQATEELOERN &
of Demei Company and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its’ ZEEHF AP A LIRR - RES.67FH
estimated useful life of 5.67 years by reference to the contractual term as fhEt AT A FRR IR B AR A HESH -

stipulated in the non-compete agreement.

(b) Development expenditure represents the Group’s development cost (b) FERASEASBARARANEEBEREHE
in pharmaceutical products technology which are used to develop mEOERFMORENEN - EFERA - FES:
the Group’s new products in medical beauty services. The directors I R2025F THF el - BRI ST G#
considered that the new products are scheduled to be completed - BERAAMEARIL - BR - HREBERE
in the second half of 2025. The development expenditure will not BEORETRA LB ERSETRE R

be amortised until it is available for use. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired.
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31 December 2023 202312 H31H

15. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) during the year are

R PSRRI

15. IEIEFIE
FRNETHBEE(BE NEBMT -

as follows:
Other Expected
intangible credit loss
Others asset provision Total
AHEE
Hftt HttEFEE EBEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 20221 H18 - - 860 860
Acquisition (note 24) Wi (Hzt24) - (2,550) - (2,550)
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRFABa B E
during the year (note 9) (H1:9) 659 300 1,482 2,441
At 31 December 2022 and R2022%F12A318 %
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 659 (2,250) 2,342 751
Deferred tax (charged) credited to FR(EEEMBR)FA
profit or loss during the year (note 9) BENELERIA
(Ht3£9) (659) 450 1,061 852
At 31 December 2023 2023512 A31H - (1,800) 3,403 1,603
Notes: Wtat
(@)  Asat 31 December 2023, the Group had accumulated tax losses arising (@) F2023F12A318 @ AEBRPBEAMELD
in Mainland China of RMB42,717,000 (2022: RMB21,273,000) that REBIEEE R ARE42,717,0007T (20224 :
would expire in one to five years. Deferred tax assets have not been ARME21,273,0007T) * R —ZERFREE -
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered probable BERZEERERAECHEBEE  REAAERE
that taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. WART KA RE A FEARD & M Al IR SR S B E
B
(b)  Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding (b) REFPECEMSEE - SRR BRI H S

tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2023, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB134,270,000 (2022: RMB126,511,000).

BEREMINEREESIRAREEGKRI0%HE
M - 53T BE20084F1 A1 B LA - WiEA
200712 A31BEMAF o i E A b EEIN
B EEFE Rl AE R B SR B - Al
AREMTEINHE - XAEMAEAKRER10% ©
Ft - Ak EEZ SR E R S /KT E R
A)FLE 200841 A 1 HEREAK BT 5K
BENTEMEL

B ZE2023F12A318 * WERAEERFBEA
A S HY B B A BB AN TE N R 60 R BB H AR M
AXNHENRERECHIEARE - EERR
BHER - AEEEBENEEELERKTERASE
BEREATFREAMOEBSEZETHEERE

ZEMBRRNA RGRTKRAED RERBR
F o REAE BN R B AR M B A R IR E
) B = RE AR RE ) A R 134,270,000t (2022
F: AR¥126,511,00070) HERELER IHAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

15. Deferred Tax (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets REFITRE B
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE

15. IEERE ()
RUTBEREMNS - BEHBERDITT -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
3,403 3,001
(1,800) (2,250)
1,603 751

16. Inventories
At the end of the reporting period, inventories mainly represent
purchased pharmaceutical products held for resale in the ordinary
course of business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of nil (2022: RMB38,982,000) were pledged to secure the
Group's other payables in respect of import agent services as further
detailed in note 22(b) to consolidated financial statements.

17. Trade and Bills Receivables

Trade receivables, gross

BB

Impairment

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

L ES Y

Bills receivables*

B SR RERE

B SRR IR ERER)

16. #E
RBEMR - FEEIRHENAEEREEBRE
FISEEENMEE SR o

M2023F 128310 AEBUEEEAT

(20224 : AR#38,982,0007T ) 17 E1E A

EEARERERENEMEMN KBNS -
—HHBEH AR A EREME220)

17. EZEWFER EWEE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTF T ARBTT
549,596 359,478
(13,561) (9,316)
536,035 350,162
4,470 1,106
540,505 351,268

* Bills receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for
the endorsement or discounting.

The Group granted credit terms ranging from 90 days to 180
days (2022: 90 days to 180 days) to customers after the delivery
of goods, except for certain customers who were required to
make payments in advance prior to the delivery of goods. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over the settlements of its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. As
at 31 December 2023, trade receivables of RMB425,629,000 (2022:
RMB319,381,000) were covered by letters of credit.
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SRR B R o

BRETEPENRZNERBITENFIEIN - A&

REFEHRNEMBIORZE180H (20224 :

90HZE180H MEEH - REBZKEH AR

W [B) /9 FE W R IR 45 B 4 SRR AR 1R - R (R

BEHEM - LB EERBRERE -B5E

WRIE BT ET B EA2023¢12H31E| =)

U R I8 A R #5425,629,0007T (20224 « AR

319,381,000 ) LA FHFELHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the date of revenue recognised and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 3 months
3 to 12 months

3EAR
3212184

17.

R PSRRI

B 5 BWERIE R EWRE ()
R B R E R s 32 B B0 B 5 8 ORIR
(BAMBRERAE) ER AT -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMETT
535,928 349,742
107 420
536,035 350,162

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year REH
Provision for impairment loss (note 7) BEEERENE7)
At end of year RER

S RUGRREERREESNT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBETT
9,316 3,111
4,245 6,205
13,561 9,316

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit loss rate. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and
coverage by other forms of insurance). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers in
relation to it sale of imported pharmaceutical products because
these customers consist of a large number of small customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about the exposure
to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and the remaining debtors are
assessed collectively with appropriate amounts on a collective basis
by using provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

RERE B RBEEEREETRED T - A
AREREEERE - BEXEENAERUE
BRA (AR T PR R EMREB A ERAOH
B) M Z %P D RARI B B 2T o &t
BRBRFAZNEER - EEFHEINEREAH
ASHERBESRE  BRNRREER R IR
MRIEAEER -

ERAEEEERREEN &7 - AEEES
B AR EREHEE N ERARNTFH
BE - RERZEEFPHARNEPENK A8
HEHREBISE - BEARKEPREA HIFRZ
NABEEIERIBNEES - TREFIGHEEZEK
REFHEREERRNER - ZEE SRR
HEABREHRNEBAMERBTE - MK TE
BARBRERFERAEREEFHRCRERE
ERE) AR B EERIAVE S S FRET TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

17. EZEWFEREWERE(E)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information (for example, the macroeconomic
conditions affecting the industry and the impact that may result in
debtor ability to make payments) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the
management to assess both current as well as the forecast direction

BT R I B s B R 58
WA S BRI AR

A ERRREEBSARBRFRANBEES
FISENEMGE  UERERTBERARE N
BRI S M ATIE £ B M (PIMF EITENREL
AR S AT RE BB A RBE N R B ) 1E A
B o BHRENRZ IR EE NS A R R
ERBNEARRER - ERETHEMOE
AHERB RS EEARNAREEE R -

of conditions of the reporting date. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
As at 31 December 2023 72023%12H31H
Past due
eIt
91to 180 More than
180 days
#Ei1B180H

1to 90

Current days days
B 12908 91Z%180H

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEER 5% 14.29% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount FREAE

(RMB'000) (AE¥FT) 541,840 7 8 7741 549,59
Covered by letters of credit LMERBEE

(RMB'000) (ARETIT) (425,629) - - - (425,629)

116,211 7 8 7,741 123,967

Expected credit losses TEEMEEER

(RMB'000) (AREBTT) 5,811 1 8 7,741 13,561

As at 31 December 2022 72022412 H831H
Past due
1t0 90 91 to 180  More than

180 days
HBiA180H

Current days days
BRER 1290H 91%180H

Expected credit loss rate TBHEEEEEX 8.41% 19% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount BREAE

(RMB'000) (ARETT) 354,125 108 2,733 2,512 359,478
Covered by letters of credit MEREEE

(RMB’000) (AR%TFT) (305,968) - - - (305,968)

48,157 108 2,733 2,512 53,510

Expected credit losses TEHEEEE

(RMB'000) (AREETIT) 4,050 21 2,733 2,512 9,316

1 54 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R RKIzE
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

17. EZEWFEREWRERE(E)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivables accepted by banks in Mainland China to certain import
agents in order to settle other payables, with a carrying amount in
aggregate of RMB25,821,000 (2023: nil) (collectively referred to as
the “Derecognised Bills”). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity term
from one to six months at the end of the reporting period. All the
Derecognised Bills had been accepted by Banks which are reputable
banks in the PRC and had a maturity of within six months at the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the
full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
advances on discounting. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is
equal to their face amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills are not significant.

18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

202256 12A310 - AEEBSEETEHERA
HIRTTRENERERFETHEORE - DEHE
BREEA £ AK®25821,0007T (20234 : &)
B LA BT KT (B[ AR ERER IR ) - TR
K RIEERE RN BBR A —Z=NEA -
RIREER - FIERIEEREERCERRAEIR
TEN - BEIBANEAN - RIB(PEARHS
MBEZEE) - MPEMIRITELY  RIEERE
BRFEASANEEHEGRRE([FHER2H]) -
EERA  ASECERBANS BKRIETERE
BERENRR RO - Aty - EEARIERERKIE
REWERABA AR 2IREE - A5E
AR FEREENFELEAME S N REEKR
e KB ZERIEERZENAURBESRE
HEAERS - EFRE  AEEHKRIEHERE
BEHFELEN A FET TEKX °

18. ANFIE  HtEWRER EMMEE

Prepayments in respect of:
- purchase of inventories
— others —Hfth

Deposits in respect of: IATIBE®ES :
—issuance of letters of credit —FMMEAE

—BERFE

— others —HAth
Value-added tax recoverable AU EEET
Amount due from a related party
Other receivables in respect of:

— staff advances —BI8X

— others —HAth

Impairment VERES

VAT IR B HTE R 3R -

e — % B8 T7 5IA
PATIE B B Rl U RROR

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
= 1,436

733 569
73,448 99,897
15 =

51,511 34,730

= 11

730 1,355

444 3,073
126,881 141,071
(77) (77)
126,804 140,994

2023 5 ERmBEEREEAs 19D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets
(Continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
are as follows:

18. EMNMIE - HtERRERHMWEE

(#&)

SEATRINROR - SRR A EER SR
BEREBRREEHMNT

2023 2022
RMB'000

AR¥ETT

RMB’000
ARBTR

At beginning of year REY) 77 356
Reversal of impairment loss (note 7) RERERE (HE7) = (279)
At end of year RER 77 77

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering ECLs, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

In determining ECLs for financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, the Directors have taken into
account the historical default experience and the future prospects of
the industries and/or considered various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating
the probability of default of each of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets occurring within
their respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss
upon default in each case.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R RKIzE

31 December 2023 202312 H31H

19. Bank Balances and Cash and Pledged Deposits

R MRS FEY
o B R

Cash and cash equivalents
Less: pledged deposits*

Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR S

19. RITAERRRSURBEFERK

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
657,948 436,996
(220,026) (107,852)
437,922 329,144

* The balances as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022
represented bank deposits with original maturity of less than three
months which are pledged to banks to issue letters of credit for the
purchase of pharmaceuticals.

The Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of the reporting
period can be further analysed as follows:

Denominated in RMB IAREEHE
Denominated in US$* AZETTEHE
Denominated in HK$* LAVSTTEHE
Denominated in $$* AR TTEHE

* 202312 8318 2022412 A31 BV 4E#R1E
REHBETBB=EARFH EABABEER
MIEA FIRITHRITIER

PEHR - AEBNIRITEBRIRS A #E—F
DL -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBETT
541,812 284,759
110,102 69,328
2,355 72,120
3,679 10,789
657,948 436,996

* US$ stands for the United States dollar. HK$ stands for the Hong Kong
dollar. S$ stands for the Singapore dollar.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a period of three months
and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

ARBETREERARREMEY - AW - RIgP
B OMNE B IR (DI ) K KA E - EE R ASEE
BRE)  ARE B RERERRINERTH
RITHARE S IRIEMERE -

RITRSRIRES RRITFRM X ERZEF
T B o EMERNERHA=MEA - AREA
MTERHMEE R o RITEMREE PFFIEFRT
e R ik B E R RFARTT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R R HIzE
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

20. Trade and bills payables 20. ESENREREMNRE
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREF T
Trade payables B G EMNZIE 813,668 366,988
Bills payables ENZEE 52,917 41,000
866,585 407,988
An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the end of the RlERRENEmnRBEELERNESE
reporting period, based on the issuance date of the pharmaceuticals’ NI R ENRIRORESTOT

inspection report, is as follows:

2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARKETFTT
Within 3 months 3EAR 866,585 407,988
Trade and bills payables of the Group are normally settled within AEENE GRENFRIERENZE BN 1208
120 to 180 days (2022: 120 to 180 days). 180H(20224F : 120E180H ) AAEE ©
The Group’s bills payables as at 31 December 2023 was secured M2023F12A318 - AEERENEEHASE
by the pledge of certain of the Group’s deposits amounting to EAHARES52917,0007C(20224F « AR
RMB52,917,000 (2022: RMB41,000,000). 41,000,0007T) By& T RIEIRERIER
21. Contract Liabilities 21. X EE
Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from ERNEERERHEERREXIREAE S IE
customers in relation to the sale of pharmaceuticals and medical RIRGERER - £ - GHAGEEHHT ¢
beauty services. Changes in contract liabilities during the year are as
follows:
2023 2022
Sale of Sale of
imported Medical imported el
pharmaceutical beauty pharmaceutical beauity
products services Total ducts services Total
ENERSE EXR% EHINN - i= ExIR b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARSI ARSI ARSI
At the beginning of year RE 73,250 2179 75429 21,749 = 21,749
Revenue recognised that wasindudedin -+~ REATFAADEBESNDED
the contract liabilities balance at the ey
beginning of the year (56,304) (1,941) (58,745) (11,698) - (11,698)

Net increase due to cash received, excluding B2 AR S & HIEMTFE - 7%
amounts recognised as revenue during REREDERERLE
the year 23398 374 23,112 57,199 2179 59,378

39,844 612 40,456 73,250 2,179 75429
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31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

22. Other Payables and Accruals 22, HAiERIERESTRIE

2023 2022
RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB’000
AR®TR

Payables related to: BHLATIEE ARERFUA -

Payroll and welfare payable ERTERER 7,352 4,399
Deposits received Blze (a) 18,363 21,513
Consulting and professional fees BANEES 1,858 3,324
Other tax payables Hofth JEAT A IE 7,924 3,780
Import agent services EORERS (b) - 74,605
Other payables H fth JEATRRIE 18,365 10,306
53,862 117,927
Notes: s
(@) The balance represented refundable deposits received from the Group’s (a) HBIEARBEAEBRLCHERBEHANELNM

REEHBOARERMOARERS - ZF
EREEIR RS o

distributors according to distribution contracts in order to guarantee
their performance under distribution contracts, which were unsecured
and interest-free.

(b)  As at 31 December 2022, the balances mainly represented the payables (b) F2022%F12A31H @ £HTIBEENTF=2F

to three independent third parties, which were principally engaged
in import agent services, for their settlement of part of the purchase
of pharmaceutical products on behalf of the Group together with the
service charge for the import and logistics services. Such payables were
non-interest-bearing and secured by inventories with a carrying amount
of RMB38,982,000 (note 16), no such arrangements and payables
balances are noted as at 31 December 2023.

Other than the other payables mentioned above, all other payables
of the Group are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

D EfEORIRREHBILE = HNRE  BH
REAEEZ MDD BERFEBAOFKBRED K
MRREORGEE - BRBNRBEATE - B
HEMEAARE38,982,000 M FE (KizE16)
IR - M2023F 12 A3 1 B EE LB R E
ERIER R o

B bt E bR FRIRSN - AR BRI A MR
R RTE B MBI -

2023 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4&5&

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

23. Bank Borrowings

Effective
interest rate
(%)
(vl
(%)
Current; 58 -
- Secured and quaranteed -HERRBER i) 3.50-5.00
Current portion of long term R
bank loan - quaranteed BH-BER (a) i 275
Non-current; SRS
- Guaranteed -EER (a) i) 275

B RS ERAR PYRE

23. RITER

Maturity RMB'000
3R KRBT
2024 240,000
2024 857
240,857

2025 886
886

21,743

Effective
interest rate

350-3.65

275

275

Maturity RMB'000

AERFT
03 180,000

2023 806

180,806

2024-2025 922
922

181,728
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31 December 2023 202312 H31H

23.

23. Bank Borrowings (Continued)

DR
JER A NS EEIE

Analysed into:
Repayable:

BA SRR PTRE

RITERE)
2023 2022
RMB'000
ARKETFT

RMB’000
ARET T

Within one year or on demand R—FEARAHIZE K 240,857 180,806
In the second year RE—F 886 806
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REZZFRF
(BREEMTF) - 116
241,743 181,728
Notes: st -
(@)  The Group's bank borrowings are secured and guaranteed as follows: (@) AEBERITERENA T EERRIER
() As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings of ()  H2023F12A318 » RITERARE
RMB240,000,000 (2022: RMB180,000,000) was secured 240,000,0007T(20224F : AF#180,000,000
by the Group's certain buildings of RMB68,489,000 (2022: 7C) AL EE FEF A R #68,489,0007T
RMB70,999,000), investment property with a net carrying (20224 + AR¥70,999,0007T) * BRMEF
amount of RMB6,139,000 (2022: RMB6,319,000) and was EAARME,139,0007T(2022F : AR¥E
jointly guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, Chengdu Sinco 6,319,00070) VIR E W EEVEIRM - W=
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (*Chengdu Sinco WAL  ANARIMEB A B ERE R A B 2y
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company and the Company. firBREFA B[ AEPERIERRAT ) KA A
AIFEERER o
(i) Asat 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings of RMB1,743,000 (i) M2023F12A318 @ RITERXARE
(2022: RMB1,728,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin. 1,743,0007C (2022 F + AR % 1,728,000
TC) EREFEW S AR VEEAR o
2003 59 mpEamzrerass 161
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23.

24,

162

Bank Borrowings (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  As at 31 December 2023, except for the bank borrowings which was
denominated in HK$ amounting to RMB1,743,000 (2022: RMB1,728,000),
all bank borrowings were denominated in RMB.

Business Combination

On 10 May 2022, Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company (Z9)I|
BRI A YRIF AR AT (an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) acquired 100% equity interest in Deyang Yisida
Biotech Limited (ESE Bz AT AR A 7], “Deyang Yisida”),
which owns and controls 70% equity interest in Demei Company,
at a consideration of up to RMB66.5 million from Guanghan Fire
Genie E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (BEEARBESTFEEEREER
Al, the “Vendor A”). On the same day, Mr. Huang Zhijian (the son
of Mr. Huang Xiangbin who is the executive director, chairman
of the board of directors and the substantial shareholder of the
Company) acquired 100% equity interest in Renshangren, which
owns the remaining 30% equity interest in Demei Company, at a
consideration of up to RMB28.5 million from Guanghan Haozheng
Trading Co., Ltd. (BEmEEME AR EIAR], the “Vendor B”).
The Vendor A and the Vendor B are collectively referred to as the
“Vendors”.

Upon the completion of the acquisition of Deyang Yisida, the
Company indirectly held 70% equity interest in Demei Company.
Through the entering into of a series of agreements constituting
contractual arrangements (the “old VIE Contractual Arrangements”),
the Group is entitled to exercise effective control over both
operational and financial matters and enjoy the economic benefits
derived from the entire equity interest in Renshangren and the
remaining 30% equity interest in Demei Company. The acquisition
of Deyang Yisida and the acquisition of Renshangren are collectively
referred to as the “Acquisition”. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 22 March 2022 and 10 May 2022 for
more details about the Acquisition and the old VIE Contractual
Arrangements.
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RITERCGE)
Wiz - (&)

(b)  FA2023F12A318 ' BRE&EAARY1,743,000
T (20224 + AR#1,728,0007T ) FYERTT1E XA
BITEHESN - FTEIRITIEREIUAARKERHE ©

¥Kest

MR2022F 58108 « XARIFEEE2EWEB AR
NERREYRIEARARREZNEEE TS
BAEREEAR([EFIADKBEESEREEY
BEAERAR([1ERERE]  HER RIEHIE
ERNE70% ) 2 HE - REATBBAR
ko6 SEBIT - FA - EE@LAE (KRR
B EFCIFRIEMIEEEWEEZT)
MEEZMEFHEEREEAR(TEABIE
CHC(EEEEERRTH30%ME) 2B
1 REATBBARE2858ET - EHAR
BEBHEES] -

ERWBERRERER  ARREEFEEEX
NAT0%EHE - BBV EKENLTHEN—F
T (EBVIEEHREE]) - AEEBEH{CT W
CE2BREREBEQRRFLRI0%REHEER
W EEITEARIZEGE  TEREELENK
ERZ - WIBERBEBELRBBLC M HAEII
BEHE| FERBSEREVESNTHNES
15 B2REARRBEA2022F3822BK
20225 A 10HHAE -
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24. Business Combination (Continued)
On 19 August 2022, the Group entered into a series of agreements
(the “new VIE Contractual Arrangements”) for purpose of changing
the registered holder of the entire equity interest in Renshangren
from Mr. Huang Zhijian to Ms. Liu Keping. For details of the
aforesaid change in registered holder of Renshangren, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2022.

24. ¥%50t(E
R2022F8 198 « ANEEET Y —RAHan (37
VIEEZZHE]D) - LA {2 B AR oy & 50 45

CHRCERIFEARERNFE  #F2HALQFH
HiA20226F8 B22 HHYAE ©

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Demei =

Company as at 10 May 2022 are as follows:

NEIR2022F5 A10B AR EE R AER
DFEWT

Fair value
recognised on
the
Acquisition
BMUEEEE
FREERR R

AV
RMB’000
AR¥T
(unaudited)
(REEER)

Property, plant and equipment (note 717) Y% - BB R HETT) 3,459
Other intangible asset — Non-compete agreement (note 14)  EAhEREE — EmF e (M1 14) 17,000
Deferred tax liabilities (note 15) RERIBEE(HF15) (2,550)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFENHEEEFEEE 17,909
Goodwill on acquisition* U B g 66,536
Purchase consideration transferred BEREERE 84,445
Purchase consideration transferred satisfied by: BEZEEEREUTIAREN -
Cash Re 68,000
Contingent consideration payable (note 25) P SRR E (A 7E25) 16,445
84,445
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Acquisition EHRWESENRSRE
is as follows: DT
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FTAEZE2022%12A8318EFE
cash flows used in investing activities during the KREEHMAREERENEES R
year ended 31 December 2022 ReEEBYRL T8 68,000
S The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected * EERAREITERARAHEERTINEERYE

synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and activities
of Demei Company. The goodwill recognised is not expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

B R TR R AR R B Al)2s - O AR
BIRET TSR -
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24, £SO (E)

24. Business Combination (Continued)

Contribution to the Group’s revenue and consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2022 since the acquisition date are as
follows:

BUEE B ERfE - B E 202212 A31 B ILFEY
AEBE WS BB BFNEROT ¢

RMB’000
ARET T

Revenue W e 12,192
Consolidated profit RE T 4,341
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the prior year, HEHFR L —EERBRFHET  F—FEARER

the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the prior
year would be:

E bR B AN SR B A A

RMB’000
AR®T T

Revenue WS

Consolidated profit EREE A

2,278,483
70,820

Demei Company
For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill of the Group
arising from business combinations has been allocated to the CGU
of Demei Company.

The basis of the calculation of the recoverable amount of Demei
Company and the major underlying assumptions adopted in the
valuation are summarised below:

At 31 December 2023, the recoverable amounts of this CGU
had been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections covering a 5-year period,
based on financial budgets approved by management and a discount
rate of 19.53% (2022: 19.29%) per annum. Cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated with a 2.0% (2022: 2.3%) growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth rate
forecast and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate of
the relevant industry. No impairment loss is considered necessary for
Demei Company.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budget
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management'’s expectations for the market
development. The Directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGU of Demei Company to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
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25. Contingent Consideration at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss
As part of the series of agreements with the Vendors, a contingent
consideration is payable, which is dependent on the profit of Demei
Company for each year of the years ended 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024. At the acquisition date, the fair value of the initial
amount recognised was estimated to be RMB 16,445,000 which was
determined using the scenario analysis method and is within Level
3 fair value measurement. As at 31 December 2023, the contingent
consideration payable was remeasured as RMB22,078,000 (2022:
RMB19,078,000) at fair value. A significant increase/decrease in the
profit of Demei Company would result in a significant change in the
fair value of the contingent consideration payable. The contingent
consideration payable is classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. A reconciliation of fair value measurement of
the contingent consideration payable is provided below:

25.

R 7% S 7 B

BEAFEFABRNIARE
EREE I — R HEMN—35 - kAR
BRETEEZDARNEE20224 « 2023F %2024
F1R2ANBUEFESFNEMNZM - RIKEB
H - BEEROVBSENQAFTEGBTAARE
16,445,0007C ' IABEITEAETE BRE
ZMAFEE - H2023F12A318 © ERTK
RREZATFEEFTEAARE22,078,0007T
(20224 :+ AR#19,078,0007T) ° EENTFIH
SEAKIEIEA, WS G EBEMNSIANREBOHATF
EREERET - BHIARELEAZRATE
ATABRNESRERE - BAARENATES
SHERIOT

RMB’000
ARET T

Arising on business combination (note 24)
Unrealised fair value change recognised in profit or loss

As at 31 December 2022

Unrealised fair value change recognised in profit or loss Rz

As at 31 December 2023

75 0 01 S (W3224)
RIBRER RN A B A FERD

M20225128318

SR AREIR

H2023%12H31H

16,445
2,633

19,078
RNHEEES

3,000

22,078
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26. Share Capital
Shares

Authorised:
10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each

ETE

10,000,000,000/%
(20224 : 10,000,000,0000%)

26. IRA
[iigvis
2023 2022
RMB’'000
ARMETF T

RMB’000
ARET T

FRYEE0.0001 7 7T &) L B AR 822 822

Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAE
2,032,890,585 (2022: 2,032,890,585)

ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each

2,032,890,5850%
(20224 : 2,032,890,5850%)

FRYEEO.000 1B T T @M 164 164

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

At 1 January 2022
Issue of new shares

R2022F1H1H
BITHR D

At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023

2022128318 »
2023F1 A1 R
2023512 A31H

ARBBRAZBHERMNT

Number of Share capital

share in issue RMB’000

B R&TRHD &

BB ARMT T

1,872,890,585 151

(a) 160,000,000 13
2,032,890,585 164

Note:

(@ On 3 January 2022, a total of 160,000,000 placing shares were
allocated and issued to the placees at the price of HK$1.29 per share,
resulting in new share capital of HK$16,000 (before issue expenses).
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27. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and the senior management
of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share
Option Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 1
February 2016 and became effective upon the listing of the shares
of the Company and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from 1 February 2016. Please refer to
the 2016 annual report of the Company for details.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

27. [BIRRESTE

A REIERER TSI ([ AR El]) - BEMm
AAEEERELERNA AR HERERE
RER - BREEINSERS2EEREAQT]
HEWBRRNAER BB EMRENEMEE
([REERDMES (ER2BIGER) - 8iEX
AR EMB AR KRR ETEHNES(RIE
BMIENTESR) RERERE - BRENEID
72016452 1 BEAR R B IR B AW R4 )
Bty Emig sk - ARRIESITECHSEE] - B
201652 A1 BB THRNEREN - B
1B BREART2016FFR -

RAFEE - BREST 8N A AT B RTT
1%

Weighted

average Number of

exercise price options

INEEF 1T EE BREHE

Notes HK$ per Share ‘000

s sRET T4

As at 1 January 2022 20221 A1H (i) 0.568 1,150

Lapsed during the year RER KK (ii) 0.568 (1,150)
As at 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 M2022912A8318 » (i)

and 31 December 2023 2023F1 A1 K

202312 A31H = =

Notes: Biat -

(i) There is no share options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and
2023. The 1,150,000 share options outstanding as at 31 December
2021 related to share options granted by the Company on 21
September 2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568 per share to certain
eligible participant of the Company in respect of their contributions to
the Group'’s development under the Share Option Scheme.

(i) The 1,150,000 share options granted to one employee under the
Share Option Scheme were lapsed due to expiry of option period on 20
September 2022.

(i)  PA20224 2023412 B31 B & RITHEEEE
RRHE o 722021412 A31 B AR 1T# 91,150,000
DERESRARRRARRE TAERSESE
HAEEZERMELHAER - M20165F9H21H
BRI B ZIRTT(E BB R0.568E TR E
B A REARAE -

(i)  RIFEREEIE T —&EER1,150,0001) 8
% 4 ) B A R AR 72 2022469 A 20 B [@ i i 2%
R o
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27. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 27. R AEETEI(E)

168

There was no share option expense recognised during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Company had no share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.
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28. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial

statements.

(@)

(b)

()

Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. Under the constitutional
documents and the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the share
premium is distributable as dividend on the condition that the
Company is able to pay its debts when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business at the time the proposed dividend is
to be paid.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("PRC GAAP"), to the statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR"”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As certain PRC subsidiaries are wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises, allocation to the SSR is not required. According to
the Rules for the Implementation of Foreign-funded Enterprise
Law of the PRC and articles of association of these PRC
subsidiaries, they are required to allocate 10% of their profit
after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of their
respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

28. f#&
AEENREESERINAEE RBEFEHS
PG ANBRENGA RS LT -

(@)

(b)

(c)

IR 17 a(E Bk

EARMEBRIFASHEARTERE °
BRESEXHIASHERRE  WAR
ANIRMNEERERENERAEERS
RERHREERS - BIROEER DR AR

=1
T

ERRER
EHBHBIEADAIRA ARG )| FE A
BETHRAREE -

EERE

RIEH B R BE KA B B A & B A
AIMAEERAR - SPEWBLQRZER
BPREARSTRAN(TFREAREHER
B NEBESEEI0%RTEEFNEELER
#HEE(DETRBEE])  EE%HHE
B HFMEAR50% °

HAETHEMBRRBIEBERE
WHBABRELTERGRE - RiIEF B
BERZERARRZETBEMERFR
HEERADR  ZFARAREBETEIR
SRR B 10% bR B 1&0E T 205 TE i
BE2(DEERBER])  BEEARHED
ERHFMEARE50%RIE

BBRBEARZBETRERMBEETR
BRI  AEBBHBIEERBES
AR 3K - R AR R B BRHE R
L BBHRK -
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28. f#E(E)
(d) EBRRfERE

28. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an amount of
RMB219,000 (2023: nil) was transferred from the share option
reserve to retained profits because the 1,150,000 share options
were lapsed due to expiry of option period on 20 September
2022 (2023: nil).

BREREEECRBERRITERRE
HRATE - E— BN RS MEHRRM
A2 AF AR BEER MR S ETBUR
WL - % & AN ERE BT R
BREERMEER - XN AEBREDH
HHOR WS RS RG] o

BE20229F12 A3181EFE - #741,150,000
10 i AR R R B AR R BAPR 70 2022 F9 A 20 H
[EmMARI (20234 - &) » ABMARYE
219,0007C(2023%F : &) MR IEREE
BERE&H] °

29. &iE
AEERBE RO EREENT :

29. Commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARKETFTT

Contracted, but not provided for: ERTABREHREME -
— Construction of a warehouse —EHREE 14,985 27,322
— Furbishing of a property — BN E 3,976 18,338

18,961 45,660

30. HAREE
RIFEER - AEEBEIMEARARRE -

30. Contingent Liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.
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31. Related Party Transactions 31. BEFRS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following (@ FR AEEHBEHIETHEKX
material transactions with related parties: RZWT :
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin HEEWEERER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEIRITER 241,743 181,728
Amount due from Risun JEUTRisunFRIA = 11
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) XEEFEEEASFH
the Group
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Short-term employee benefits RHESET 11,012 6,518
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHK 331 213
Total compensation paid to SN FEEEEAEN
key management personnel HhezE 11,343 6,531

32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 32. L4 REHRERKE

Flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions (a) EEFRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered HZE2023F12A31BLLEE - AE@EFT
into certain lease contracts in which additions to right-of-use VYETHESGY RHEERKAB S5
assets and lease liabilities amounting to RMB2,948,000 (2022: BREAEEEMNHEAGEREARE
RMB12,905,000) and RMB2,948,000 (2022: RMB12,905,000) 2,948,000 (2022 F : AR% 12,905,000
respectively was recognised at the lease commencement date. 7o) R AR¥E2,948,0007T(20224F « AREE

12,905,0007T) ©
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

32. REREREBRMEE)
(b) BEFBFFELENREZH

Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2023F12831B8LEE
Other
Lease payables Bank
liabilities and accruals borrowings
H o pE{T
MIER
HESE FESTRIE RITHEM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR%¥Tx AR%Tx
At 1 January 2023 ®2023F1/81H 10,684 74,605 181,728
Changes from financing cash flows BERenER (4,423) (74,605) 60,015
Foreign exchange movement SN &) (4) = -
Other non-cash movement HiIFRE &) 2,948 = -
Interest expense FMEZH 453 o -
At 31 December 2023 72023412 H31H 9,658 - 241,743
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12A318 5 E
Other
Lease payables Bank
liabilities  and accruals borrowings
HAb R
FIER
HEAE FEETHIR SRITIEX
RMB‘'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 202241818 384 1,886 340,564
Changes from financing cash flows BERESnEEH (3,045) 72,719 (158,836)
Foreign exchange movement SNEEE) 7 = =
Other non-cash movement E A 3RS & E) 12,905 - -
Interest expense FMEZH 433 - -
At 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H 10,684 74,605 181,728
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated

statement of cash flows is as follows:

VPN

e MR R

32. ZEBRERERMTE(E)

HERSRLLE
FEReREXRANEER &R LA
T

(0

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Within operating activities BREEEE 915 838
Within financing activities BREEER 4,423 3,045
5,338 3,883

33. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

33. e T EER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2023
Financial assets

2023F12H31H

FHRERTANREHIROREELNT

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables

Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Bills receivables

SREE
RMB’000
ARET T
BEBERATENSREE
E Sl IE 536,035
AT FIE « At EREIE R
HtwEENSRMEE 75,293
(SRR 220,026
IBITEBEIRE 437,922
BAFEFABZNESMEE
e ZE 4,470
1,273,746

2023 3 ERIRBEERERAR
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33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 33. EMIT BEERI(E)
31 December 2023 (Continued) 2023F12A318 (&)
Financial liabilities SHasE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REFERATTENERAE
Trade and bills payables H 5 ENRIERENRE 866,585
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 5t AE {th FE 1~ 2018 K FEST 30 TEH)
TEIAE 45,583
Bank borrowings BITEN 241,743
Lease liabilities HEAR 9,658
1,163,569
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: BATEABEZANEREE
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARE 22,078
Total wEt 1,185,647
31 December 2022 2022 12H31H
Financial assets SREE
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost RBHERATTENEREE
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 350,162
Financial assets included in prepayments, FEATERFIE - E i JEUGRIE &
other receivables and other assets HihWBEENSREE 102,623
Pledged deposits [REFEHIESA 107,852
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 329,144
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BAFEFABRNSREE
Bills receivables R 1,106
890,887
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33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 33. @I BERI(E)

31 December 2022 (Continued) 2022F12A318 (&)
Financial liabilities EHMAE
RMB’000
ARETT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REFERATTENERAE
Trade and bills payables H 5 ENRIERENRE 407,988
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 5t AE {th FE 1~ I8 K FEST 70 TEH)
TEIAE 35,948
Bank borrowings RITEN 181,728
Lease liabilities HEBR 10,684
636,348
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: BATEABEZANEREE
Contingent consideration payable JERT S AKIE 19,078
Total st 655,426

34. Fair Value Measurement and Fair Value 34. £RMIEAFEFERAFEREBR
Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial BEREERER BRI HME QA TESERES
instruments carried at amortised cost, other than those with carrying AEESHIAIN  REEREHKARTRNE
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values due to short RTAMKRMELRAFENT :

term to maturity, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair value
IREE AEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR¥ETR ARETE
Financial liabilities =N
Non-current portion: FEBNHAE 5
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 886 922 838 868
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. TRMTEAFEFERAFEER

34. Fair Value Measurement and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial Instruments (Continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of bank balances and
cash, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals and current interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are determined
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for non-current financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of contingent consideration payable have been
calculated by scenario based method by an independent
professionally qualified valuer and this method involves identifying
potential future scenarios and assigning probability to each
scenarios. Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation as at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

il

~~

&)

EEECHERITEHERE  CEAER B
HRMFIRRBRERE - EHERNFTBARENR
& FEATENUR - AtRUKEIR R EMEER
ERMEE  FEAEMENRARER RN S R
BENFAEG BRITEFRNAFEREREE
BE - TEARZETAREHAZE -

eMEERBENATEKREMT (WIFREL
BREE)ZHNERNR SR AETRRNITA
WEREET - ARG A TFENF R RERHRN
T~

JERNEREH ERITE R AT ENAE B LUER -
EERBR LG TR BT EERA AT R
ARIRTEHIR RIS REFEBH - R2023F K
202212 A31H - AEBAXRSE@ERE SR
BENTBHORBATER A FEZES TG AT
sy N

JERSAREBO AT EHB L EXE BB ER
RABSATESL  ZA 5P RERRIBERER
BERASBEIRME - LTAER2023F X
2022F 12 A31 B HERNERT A SR ASE
e

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
Technique unobservable input value to the input
EXTAEE
ER % AR AHEHBABBNHRE
Contingent consideration Scenario based method Target net income change ~ 10% decrease in net income would result in
at fair value through range a decrease in fair value by RMB164,000 (2022: RMB529,000).
profit or loss
Discount rate Discount rate of 16% (2022: 15%) (Note a)
BATER ABRE ER% ARERAZEHE BRATRI0%EEHATERD ARK164,0007T
A E (2022 : AR¥529,0007T ) ©
BRE BB R 16% (20224  15% ) (Hita)
Note: st

(@ A 1% increase/decrease in the discount rate, holding all other variables
constant, would decrease/increase the carrying amount of the
contingent consideration by RMB252,000 and RMB257,000 respectively
(2022: RMB378,000 and RMB389,000 respectively).
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34. Fair Value Measurement and Fair Value
Hierarchy of Financial Instruments (Continued) (&

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:

R B RE

By &E

3. €M T A A FES

&)

ATEER

SN

Hlm

A V2

:F

BEE&

THREAREEERTANATEFEER -

Assets measured at fair value: BN FEFEMEE -
Fair value measurement using
AREFELR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT S BEAUBE EATUHE
HR{E WAHE WAHE
(—4) (B=%) (B=8) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥TT
Bills receivables: BRI :
As at 31 December 2023 2023512 A31H - 4,470 - 4,470
As at 31 December 2022 720229 12A31H - 1,106 - 1,106
Liabilities measured at fair value: R FEFTENEE -
Fair value measurement using
AFEIHREA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEBTIS EXTBR EBEAFUHE
HE BWAHE BAHE
(B—4%) (B=%) (B=#) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
Contingent consideration at fair value BATER ABRE
through profit or loss HARE
As at 31 December 2023: 72023F12A8318 - = = 22,078 22,078
As at 31 December 2022: R20229128318 : = - 19,078 19,078
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements REAN - pemEERSRBEMNS « £—HHE

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities.

2023 &

TR B SRR A T

FoMEBEATESEER  MEEASE
HE=/ -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments include bank borrowings,
pledged deposits and bank balances and cash whose main purpose
is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, trade payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals which arise directly from its operations.

The main financial risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank borrowings are
disclosed in note 23.

The Group had no material exposure to the risk of changes in the
market interest rates as the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates were short term.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing borrowings through its long-term
bank borrowings at fixed rates. In addition, the Group has not used
any interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk.
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's purchases of products from the overseas suppliers are
conducted in US$. Most of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, interest-bearing
bank borrowings and trade payables, that are denominated in S$,
US$ and HKS.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

35. KEREEEERBER(E)

SN JeR\ P
AREBUAERTREIMIERBEER - AEEX
woeMEENABAARKEE  EETRS
MREEEY  BFRWEOR - HtEERE -
FHRIRTTRE RN E S IAIE B LAFT AT -
EILNBILAHE ©

RIS - ARELSE BN EEEE RS
Mo SR AT

Assets Liabilities
BE =L

2023 2022 2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥T T AREETTT
HK$ BT 2,355 72,121 1,743 1,728
us$ ETT 457,656 389,108 355,060 300,117
S$ b 3,679 10,996 - =

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group’s foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

REE W TS AT SRR S A IR B TE R IMNE
KE o EREEERAKEIINERR - WASHESR
FEREBEREAINERL
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiEKEEEERBKE (&)

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change
in RMB against US$, HK$ and S$. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analysis of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period has been determined based on the adjustment of
translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$, HK$ and
S$, respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
(due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and trade payables
denominated in US$, HK$ and S$):

2023 2023%F

If RMB weakens against US$ WAREHETRE

If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR HETTHE

If RMB weakens against HK$ i AREE S Tz (B

If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR B THE

If RMB weakens against S$ fist A RIS S5 g e iz (8
If RMB strengthens against S$ fis] A RS S 3 T HHE

SNEE B (48 )
TRINRARYE S ETT ~ BT K ik obE =
FH)5.0%HTESE ° 5.0% BN M EBZEEA
E2WREERBAAL R  AEIEEYHINGE
KREIBA] AL F BTG - AEBRSREHRH
¥ R INE R EITRRRE ST - HIRIBTEA
HEpEERETENERT  RARBLET
BRI INETEREES 0% D RIFHERERE
HAREBEERABREBHAEEEZ2023
FR202F12A31 B IEFEBRFADNG T 2
BT (ARAETT - B hFIiE Tt ENRE
MASEEY BHRKFUE  sFERITERK
B 5 ENFUEN A EZBAME)

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
USS$/HKS$/CS$/S$ (decrease) in
rate % profit after tax
Ex B/
ngEXR T g T BR#i &% Al
MELHA(THE)% #m CRd)
RMB’000
AR® T
(5) (8,003)
5 8,003
(5) (125)
5 125
(5) (315)
5 315

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
US$/HK$/C$/S$ (decrease) in
rate % profit after tax
x5,/ Bt/
INEARTTFhnis T BRI 1R
MEEFA (TR % i,/ Crd)
RMB’000
ARBTFT
2022 20224
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR HE TR E (5) (3,337)
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR A ETHE 5 3,337
If RMB weakens against HK$ i ANREE B TRz E (5) (2,939)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR & T HHE 5 2,939
If RMB weakens against S$ fi] AR 3R Tz (E (5) (467)
If RMB strengthens against S$ fi) A R IR T HHE 5 467
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiKEKREEEERKE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk EERR

The Group manages this risk by requiring payment in advance or AEFFBERETRFIRAIN SR EAHE
letters of credit from certain customers and offering standardised FaETREERENTOE180HNZEZEH
credit terms to certain customers for a credit period ranging BIRZEPR o AOMEE17FTIREE - ANEE Rk
from 0 to 180 days. As disclosed in note 17, the Group seeks to Hib R E R R R IBEE T EAEH - B
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and senior FEEEFHEMAa SR -

management regularly reviews the overdue balances.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging R AR O e R B

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure TREMBASECEERREERBNEEY
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly EZhERBM O - BRIFEBN KA ES HEN
based on past due information unless other information is available AESHMER  TRIEFZBENEIER - I
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as ER12A3IAMERDBNE - 278 AES
at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts BB EMARREE -

for financial assets.

Lifetime ECLs
FENRBEEEE

12-month
ECLs Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

128 A7
ERE#R
F-KR SRR CEL- 3 LH:p: #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR  ARET:R

31 December 2023 2023F12A31H
Trade receivables* (Note 1) B S EIRIE (W) = - = 549,596 549,596
Financial assets included in FTABMFOR - H it

prepayments, other receivables WA EMEER

and other assets** (Note 2) SEEE (M) 75,370 = - - 75370
Pledged deposits BEAER

~ Not yet past due —HABE 220,026 - - - 220,026
Bank balances and cash BITHERRRE

— Not yet past due — AR 437,922 - - - 437,922

733,318 = = 549,596 1,282,914
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiEKEEEERBKE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) FERR(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) RSO R FR DB ()

Lifetime ECLs
HRHE
12-month

Simplified

NEEW) Stage 3 approach

FRE R F=ER B st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR
31 December 2022 20225124318
Trade receivables (Note 1) BH YRR - - - 359,478 359,478
Financial assets included in STATERFUE - Aft
prepayments, other receivables R R E M B ER
and other assets (Note 2) SREEME2) 102,700 - - 102,700
Pledged deposits [REEEHES S
- Not yet past due — R 107,852 - = = 107,852
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRES
— Not yet past due —HARBH 329,144 = = - 329,144
539,696 - - 359,478 899,174
Note 1 For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach MiaE1 BB SEWFRIEMS @ ANEED ERBRIT S
in IFRS to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. As part of REEANE b H AT EFERBEEEEE
the Group's credit risk management, the Group used an internal HNBEEE - (EAAEBEERREEN—I
credit rating by assigning an individual loss rate for its debtors with o AEBRBAIEETER - AEEAGEH
significant balances. Other than trade receivables with significant HEBADBERNNEER - BBEEREHN
balances, the remaining balances are grouped collectively based B SREWEIAI B N BRI EZRFTENLR
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to past default KEBSAB AR RIZ LR EERRFRE
experience and current past due exposure of the debtors. The ol - REBEERHNIEERBR TR
Group applied internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the BIELATER o

following categories.
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

BEEBEERERBEKGE)

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
Note 1 (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories:

Internal

creditrating  Description Trade receivables

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk  Lifetime ECL - not
of default and does not have credit-impaired
any past-due amounts

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after Lifetime ECL - not
due dates but usually settle in credit-impaired
full

Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL - not

increases in credit risk since
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external resources

credit-impaired

Loss There is evidence indicating the  Lifetime ECL - credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off

the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

Note 2 The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “low risk”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Péﬂﬁﬁ(u/\)

g ik O RER 5 H ()
HaE1 ()

AEENABEERBRIRIERETIE
Al :

wE
FEFR  #H BHEWRE

KEB RPUFEORR TFEHEDHE
BIE - BEER  EEE-
WS FERE
BRAE F%Aﬂﬁ&ﬂ\ FEETEHE
AkEE AR  EBE-
ReRHLEE EERE
TF5k EBARIRINEE  FEETESHE
ERFTHIE K BEiE-
BRI FERE
BREEERR
BBEEM
g BRERPEEL GFEHESHE
BEERAE BEE-=
ERAE
e HEEXRAEBA SECMH
BREENHTE
Rz MAEE
WEEEKER
B3

etz MR ATENFOR - R BESRR AN EEN
CREEY RN EMEEARBETZESRHE
ENGEERR NS EANREZEIER - AIE
EEERWEREMERR] - B ZE2ME
ENEEERWREFR] -

BRAAKEPEREK S B 5 RKRENEERER
HE— SR BUR - R M BEMARM 17
B
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and BERREEEERBEEK(E)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk TRENE & mb

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
borrowings and its own funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

AEEZRERCRARREREENZHAN
ARtRER e REERESERER -

AEENBEAEBERF SRITEFARER
FESKFARESHEERIDE TN FE -

LAT7%$’$I$|@EE1§EA$& HRERA
BISREOEIEME R

#IRER

2023
(o]} Less than 1to 5

demand 12 months years Total

RER  DRM2fE8R 1ZE56 st

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTRE AR®TRT AR%¥®TR AR®Tx

Bank borrowings RITIE = 245,224 934 246,158

Lease liabilities HEAE - 4,154 6,397 10,551

Trade and bills payables H S ENRIERENRE - 866,585 - 866,585
Financial liabilities included in ST AE MR FRIE &

other payables and accruals EErZENSRmBE 45,583 - - 45,583
Contingent consideration at fair & A (AL AEZH

value through profit or loss HARE - - 27,000 27,000

45,583 1,115,963 34,331 1,195,877

2022
On Less than 1t05

demand 12 months years Total

meER  D2{EA 1ZE54 et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARBTFT ARBTT ARETT

Bank borrowings RITIE = 182,807 975 183,782

Lease liabilities HEBE - 3,587 8,763 12,350

Trade and bills payables EE Y ANENEYS AN - 407,988 - 407,988
Financial liabilities included in ST AE fth FE T 5038 &

other payables and accruals EETF BN SR A E 35,948 - - 35,948

Contingent consideration at fair & A ET AEZH)
value through profit or loss HARE - = 27,000 27,000
35,948 594,382 36,738 667,068
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiEREEEEREE(E)

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing financial
risk during the year.

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations and proceeds from the
new bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net
debt includes contingent consideration at fair value through profit
or loss, bank borrowings, trade and bills payables, other payables
and accruals, tax payable and lease liabilities, less bank balances
and cash and pledged deposits. Equity includes equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. The gearing ratios at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

BXREE
AREAREROEE R RARRAREEH
BB R BROERLE - AL
ESAE LT

AEBRGER NS ERHLEARBEL L E
TEHRE - RERRFREARRE  AEExE
HEERBRERBXAEREEZEETHES - F
A BEMBERNBR - BERSBEW IR

%4
=8 e

REEREEBEEEMSARE S ARITIER
TREAMMERAERIERNEERFHL - NEH
MAaELLR(BEFERESNAEFE)EE
ER - BEFEEERATE ABRNEAR
B - RITER - BHENRARENRERE - £
e IR K B OB - AR RS & EIRER
TTHRBMREURDERFR - R BRERARF]
A ARG - MEMRWBELEWT
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiEEMEEEERKE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) BREE(E)

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Bank borrowings RITER 241,743 181,728

Trade and bills payables B S ENRIBRENEE 866,585 407,988

Other payables and accruals Hfth fE (T RRIE R JERT 1B 53,862 117,927

Tax payable FERARIE 26,444 5,437

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss & ATFEGF ABHHSRAR 22,078 19,078

Lease liabilities HEEE 9,658 10,684
Less: Bank balances and cash o RITREMRKRIE S (437,922) (329,144)
Pledged deposits BIEEER (220,026) (107,852)

Net debt BEFR 562,422 305,846

Equity vy 628,052 603,812

Equity and net debt #Em Rk BB 1,190,474 909,658

Gearing ratio BfEE 47% 33.6%

36. Dividends 36. B2
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RIBEHIRE - AAREEREEET2023F12
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK0.39 cents A318 It FER RIS ST mAT0.3955 (0
(2022: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December (2022€F : H{Z=2022F 12 A31 B It EEHFE]
2022 of HK0.98 cents) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount A% 2.0.988 1) - 42%84958,000,00078 7T (B %
of approximately HK$8,000,000 equivalent to approximately R AR¥7,238,0007T) (20224 : 20,000,000
RMB7,238,000 (2022: HK$20,000,000 equivalent to approximately BT (BERYARY18112,0007T)) + BLRR
RMB18,112,000), has been proposed by the directors of the HREREREAS FIESOER - RER B
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the E AN R4 B Bi 21T IE N9 2,032,890,585 0% 2
forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend has been calculated BEITHR D ETE -

by reference to the 2,032,890,585 issued shares outstanding as at
the date of this report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &R RKIzE
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

37. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  37. & BB 4k R &

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRARRRNRRERRNT A RRER DT ¢
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBRAERE 107,056 107,056
Total non-current asset FRBEELE 107,056 107,056
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments TERTFRIE = 270
Other receivables H b GRIA 36 36
Amounts due from subsidiaries R B A RIFIE 120,889 99,281
Bank balances and cash RITER RIS 9,516 42,627
Total current assets REBEEHAE 130,441 142,214
CURRENT LIABILITY RENEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FERT—FE B A RIRIE 13,890 13,977
Total current liability REAEEE 13,890 13,977
NET CURRENT ASSETS REVEEFE 116,551 128,237
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BREERTDERE 223,607 235,293
Net assets EEFE 223,607 235,293
EQUITY En
Issued capital BEITIRAR 164 164
Reserves (note) A=) 223,443 235,129
Total equity fERAR 223,607 235,293
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 2023912 AH31H

R PSRRI

37. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 37. AR TR RER(E)
(Continued)
Note:

The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows:

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022
Issue of new shares
Share issue expenses
Forfeiture of share options
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

At 31 December 2022

20224128318 %
20231818

FREEBR
2EMAS 5

720235 12A831H°

20214128318 %
20224F1 AR
BATHRRD
A&7 B 1 TR
R BE AR A
FREER
FHERLBE

20224128318

st -
ARAVRBEHIT -
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
IR A7 R EER B ERE Rt st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTT ARETT AR¥ETTT ARETT
526,133 - (291,004) 235,129
- - (11,686) (11,686)
526,133 - (302,690) 223,443
366,682 696 (290,009) 77,369
165,518 - - 165,518
(6,067) (6,067)
- (696) 696 -
- - (1,691) (1,691)
526,133 - (291,004) 235,129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 438 B i& sk &R Mz
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

38.

39.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group mainly participates in the mandatory pension fund and
social insurance schemes for its employees in the PRC, Singapore
and Hong Kong.

The Group operates a MPF scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The employees of the Group’s Singapore subsidiaries
are members of the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore
operated by the Government of Singapore. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligations of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes.

The Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme
and its retirement benefits schemes in the PRC and Singapore which
may be used to reduce the existing level of contributions during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and at the end of the reporting
period (2022: nil).

38.

39.

it R
GABBRRON2024F3 26 B EEESHE
MASHETEE -

B ARERETE
FAEBEERENGRE - HNEKEENEES
MR BIMIRIR S RAL G RME B -

AEERBEMARERERETREARE -
AEMEERSRAMENNESBASEEE
DHFA -

AEENHEREAREBY RHETERAZE
MR EIRR RN B E - NEBRFI
WP 2 BE B 15 % i # IR U 2 & RO 3T I3
PRATEERNKE - ZEMEARERERE
¥ E T 82 PR FRIRENE B
URERBRINRERES - LR K@ 8l
5 ARENHE-BEEAREZEEELRE
AR

HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE RN ERR - &
S ERAHE T INE A58 18 & 5T 8 R E R IKE A
FTEI TN A] RIER IR A UK TR IR
(2022 « &) -
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Definitions

" affiliate”

(BB AL]

"AGM"
[RBEFAE ]

"Articles” or “Articles of Association”
[40A) k[ 4B =240 A

"Beijing Nuokangda”
[ ReERGE]

“Board”

=

“Cayman Islands Companies Law”

[FERSRANE]

"CG Code”
[bREATAI

“Chairman”

=S

“China” or “the PRC”
[

"Company"” or “our Company" or
“the Company”
VNCTE

“Demei Company”
Rt=/NGi

“Director(s)"”

==

"Group”, "“our Group”, “the Group”,

" "noou

we”, “us”, or “our”

[ZRSR |~ [3RAPT ISR TR

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person
BESHEEGIETE A TR B E S EEIE S EEE A T EES RS HA
22 | ) LR AT B A £

annual general meeting of the Company

AARBERBFAE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RRAR201652 A1 B AR ERM B ZZIZ M A (B TREHERT)

Beijing Nuokangda Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (It G FE B BRI KL
3 BBR/AF]), a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC
I RHEREBERBEROBERAR - BEPEVEEFMK I QA

the board of Directors

=g

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FHEREZENFE22T (1961 F E350EN) R RDE(2013FEETM) - K AKEET
S AR B A B T g2k

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
as amended and supplemented from time to time, where references to code
provisions in this annual report refer to provisions in the CG Code that came
effect on 1 January 2022

AR RIB SR O P A Y 1 S B S R (S NRHERT Rl 7e ) - AFE S 8
PR MIRAUIER 202261 A1 B AWM EE AT AIEX

the chairman of the Board

BEFETR

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
RE ARKEME - NRERTBESE  RFIFTHR RAE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (B} 88 B4 G A R A 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March 2015
ERIABEITRARAT - P2015F38 16 B EHASHESTMRINER AR

A A]

0}

Deyang Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company* ({Bf5{EEEE R E
Bz AR A 7)), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
EREEEEERNERARAR  REREMKZHEREETAF

the director(s) of the Company
KAREE

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRATREAMIRIME R FA R (BRMKRREWE R R ZZER DA ATE BB M
= MEBEMMB R RIS EA S RIERME )KL ER
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Definitions B&

"HKS"
87t

“HKSE"
[ BB

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”

[EAEBHERLIEE]

“human albumin solution”

[AMAERESR]

"Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”

[ o B e B8 2 |

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#RAI

“Main Board”
E Y
“MPCM"

[&5H - HELREEIE]

“Mr. Huang”
(&L

“Octapharma”

R FEE3E ]
"PRC”
[hE

"“Prospectus”

[ E ]

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEAEEE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERMERXHER AT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEFEBSRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

ERTREBSFERLABRAF

Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes of total
protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250 grammes of
total protein per litre). The term human albumin solution refers to both products
or either one of them as the context requires

BRBEHEEN20% AMAERIFR(BHE#EH200%) 25% AMA
EHHIR(BAESHED2507%) - AMBERFSIREZ TMIEE M E T —1&
(RFxE)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences

o B B8 R SRR i AR ST

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time
EEBRAES LR - ETRHERT ST

Main Board of the HKSE
BB FTER

marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and promotion of
pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
RBELERHE MEHERETHEE  HREIREER

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z##7), the Chairman, Executive Director, Co-Chief
Executive Officer and one of our controlling shareholders

WEWSEE - TR RTES - BEITRASGRERRR 2 —

Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation

Octapharma AG * I InE F A LA D AR A E

the People’s Republic of China
I A RHARME

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
ARAIR20165F2 8298 TR K BARE
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Definitions 2%

“Reporting Period”
[#REH

“Risun”
[Risun ]

"RMB"”
AR

“SEQ”

[7& 7 M & {5 p |

“Share(s)"”
A& ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[FERtERt S

the financial year ended 31 December 2023
BZE20235F12A31H LM BFE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated in BVI on 16 January
2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited + 720151 A 16 B BB AR RE S AR
NE - EEAEZEERONB AR

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

ARKET  hBVEEES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
BEBEFESNERS RAEED - TSR ST

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
AR RRARFZIEE0.000178 LAY T IK

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VII to
the Prospectus

RRANR20165F2 A1 BB R RNOEEERT S - K 2GRN B E M
BHDEER—MRER —D HEf &R — 1 EEAERT &l ]

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of Shares

[ AR S SRESTDN

“U.S. dollars” or “US$” U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
E E5T 0 EFRERBEATEY

i a

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “close associate”, “connected
person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”, “core
connected person”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall
have the meanings given thereto in the Listing Rules, unless the context

otherwise requires.

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
regulations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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